
   

1 

 

 

Community Catalyst 

Board of Directors Meeting 

Friday, September 19, 2014 - Doubletree by Hilton Philadelphia Center City 

Agenda - Concerto Room, 3
rd

 floor 

Dial in: 877-594-8353 Passcode: 92690821 
 

1. Welcome & Introductions/Lunch     1:00 PM 

   

2. Perspectives from the field:  

Antoinette Kraus   Director, Pennsylvania Health Access Network 

Adam Linker      Policy Analyst, North Carolina Justice Center  

Adela Flores-Brennan  Executive Director, Colorado Consumer Health Initiative 

Cathy Levine  Executive Director, UHCAN Ohio 
 

Guiding Questions: 
. 

1. Identify the challenges and opportunities in your state.    

2. What has been Community Catalyst’s role with our organization? 

3. What has been Community Catalyst’s role in connecting you with the larger 

learning community? 

4. What else does the Board need to know in its role of helping Community Catalyst 

chart its future? 
 

 Advocates leave 

             

3. Corporate Business       2:30 PM  

 Approval of June meeting minutes (VOTE)  
 

 

4. Our Work: Reflecting on the Last Three Months   2:45 PM  

 Executive Director’s report 

  Major activities and accomplishments/outcomes this past quarter 

 Program Highlights     Sue Sherry  

 In The Loop       Amy Rosenthal  

 Development Update    Diane Felicio  
 

5. Our Environment: Trending Issues      3:30 PM 

 Political and policy environment    Michael Miller 
 

6. Board Member Sharing      4:00 PM 

 What are some of the key activities you are engaged in that  

may intersect with Community Catalyst’s key issue areas?  
 

7. Previewing Day Two Strategic Discussion    4:30 PM  

 Key discussion areas for tomorrow 
 

8. Close         4:45 PM 

 

9. Dinner         7:00 PM 

 Reflections on my sabbatical     Rob Restuccia 



 

 
 

 

Community Catalyst 

Board of Directors Meeting  

Saturday, September 20, 2014 - Palomar Philadelphia, Kimpton Hotel 

Agenda – Wright Room, 24
th

 floor  

Dial in: 877-594-8353 Passcode: 92690821 

 

Breakfast  8:30 AM 

 

 

1. Review Strategic Plan / Outcome Statements     9:00 AM  

 Recommended changes to the 2013 - 2017 Strategic Plan (VOTE) 

 Reviewing our 2017 expected outcomes 

 

  

2. Governance: The Role of the Board in Setting  

Organizational Direction       9:15 AM 

 

 Reflecting on the past: Board’s past role in decision-making and  

implementing the strategic plan            Rob Restuccia  
 

o Pew Project, Consumer Voices for Coverage, LGBT, Substance Use 

Disorders 

 

Looking to the future: As we move ahead and consider the growth of the 

organization, the new Board structure (i.e., division of Chair/President roles), 

and the role of the Board generally, we will begin to discuss and clarify what we 

envision as the ideal role for and responsibilities of the Board. For example: 

What is the Board’s role in implementing the strategic plan, approving new areas 

of work, and developing proposals? What processes/criteria do we need to put in 

place to help us determine if/when/how to involve the Board?  
 

  

3. The Atlantic Philanthropies Initiative     10:00AM 
 

 Brief history of the Atlantic opportunity and calendar moving 

forward            

 The Framework: Health System Transformation   

 The Elements        

 Support to Advocates 

 Policy/Advocacy 

 Engagement with Delivery Systems 

 

Sustaining the Work and the Organization 

 Root Cause: Fee for Service   Steve Pratt 

 Federal/State grants, Philanthropy 

 

  



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

LUNCH          12:00 PM 

        

 

Governance: The Role of the Board In Strategic Implementation (part two) 12:30  

a. What are the most effective ways of continue to hone our thinking in this area and 

continue the conversation?   

 

b. Expanding Our Board Membership    12:45 PM 

 

 

1. Executive Session        1:15 PM 

 

 

2. Close           2:00 PM  

 

 



 
 

 

 

Table of Contents  
 
Corporate Business: 

o Minutes of the Meeting of June 6, 2014     Pages 1-7 

Perspectives from the field: 

o Advocate Bios         Pages 8-10 

Executive Director’s Report:        Pages 11-15 

o Human Resource Report       Pages 16-22 

Our Work: Reflecting on the Last Three Months:  

o Program Report        Pages 23-31 

o External Affairs Report      Pages 32-33 

o Development Report       Pages 34-37 

o Communications Report      Pages 38-44 

 

Strategic Plan/Outcomes       Pages 45-51 

 

The Atlantic Philanthropies Initiative     Pages 52-64 

 

Root Cause: Fee for Service        Pages 65-69 

 

Finance Report         Pages 70-120 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

  Community Catalyst Board of Directors Meeting 
June 6, 2014 

 
In attendance: 
 
Members of the Board:  Kate Villers, Wendy Warring, Amy Whitcomb Slemmer (in person); Joia 
Crear Perry, Mark Schlesinger, Dan McGrath, Karen Hicks, Kavita Patel (by telephone) 
 
Apologies:  Anthony So, Diane MacDonald.  Robert Phillips  
 
Community Catalyst Staff:  Jacquie Anderson, Rosemarie Boardman, Diane Felicio, Donna Pina 
Robinson, Susan Sherry, Amy Rosenthal (by telephone) 

 
WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS 
 
A quorum being met, Kate Villers, Co-Chair, opened the meeting at 10:15 am  
 
Approval of March 21, 2014 Meeting Minutes.  
 
 Amy Whitcomb Slemmer moved, Mark Schlesinger seconded and it was 
 
 VOTED: unanimously to approve the minutes of the March meeting. 
 
Wendy Warring joined the meeting and assumed chairing of the meeting.   
 
Acting Executive Director’s Report  
Jacquie Anderson thanked everyone for attending and confirmed that today’s meeting 
consisted of three separate meetings: the Community Catalyst Board meeting, Community 
Catalyst Annual Meeting, and a meeting of the Community Catalyst Action Fund for the purpose 
of nominating a Board of Directors for proposed election by the Community Catalyst Board of 
Directors.   She noted that six new staff members had joined the organization since the 
previous Board meeting and that Community Catalyst now counted 61 employees, with five 
open positions.  A major focus of the past three months had been planning for Community 
Catalyst, Health Care for All and Health Law Advocates’ September move to One Federal Street 
in September, with preparation led by Rosemarie Boardman.  Jacquie also emphasized the 
opportunity for Board members to attend the annual Consumer Voices for Coverage convening 
immediately preceding the September Board meeting on September 19-20thth in Philadelphia.  
In response to a question about roles for Board members attending the conference, Jacquie 
said that these would be clarified in advance of the CVC conference.  
 
Mark Schlesinger offered to provide support and act as a conduit for identifying candidates for 
open staff positions.  Rosemarie said that she would make sure that all Board members would 
be included on Community Catalyst’s distribution list for notification of open positions.  
 

1



 
 

CORPORATE BUSINESS 
 
Year-to-Date 2014 Financials. Finance Committee Report: Rosemarie Boardman provided 
context around the 2014 financial statements and noted our continuation in growth – 
specifically with new unbudgeted revenue. She commented that 2014 YTD financial statements 
reflected Community Catalyst’s receipt of revenue beyond the 2014 projected budget; as a 
result, a larger-than-budgeted surplus could be expected at year-end.  
2013 Audited Financials.  Alfonso Perillo from Edelstein and Co. briefly reviewed Community 
Catalyst’s 2013 audited financial statements with the Board.  He complimented management’s 
responsiveness, Finance Committee engagement, and the Board’s thoroughness in reviewing 
financial statements. The audit process had proceeded well and the overall financial standing of 
the organization was strong.  Board members posed the following questions to him during the 
ensuing discussion:  
   

 What benchmarks were used for comparing Community Catalyst’s performance to other 
organizations, particularly Community Catalyst’s 15% figure for expenditure on support and 
general administrative services?  Rosemarie offered that organizations approved for 
Massachusetts state and federal workplace giving campaigns disallow participation by 
organizations with support service rates higher than 30%. She added that 30% is often seen 
as the ceiling on such rates. 

 

 Is %15 for support and general administrative services an “average” number; what is the 
range?   Alphonso stated that that 15% is a “good number.”  Wendy Warring, chair, 
questioned whether Community Catalyst’s rate might be too low and noted that the 
amount recorded for labor costs was not equivalent to revenue. Rosemarie Boardman  and 
the finance team will provide further detail on these items to the Board.   

 
Kate Villers moved that the Finance Committee will review the 990 and prior to filing provide a 
copy to the board prior to submission, Wendy Warring seconded and it was  

 
VOTED: unanimously to approve the 990 submission  
 
Kate Villers, moved, Amy Whitcomb Slemmer, seconded and it was  
 
VOTED: unanimously to approve the 2013 audited financials  

 
REVIEW AND BOARD DISCUSSION OF STRATEGIC GOAL #5: “Diversify Community Catalyst’s 
funding sources and develop a flexible pool of resources for investment in key priorities and 
program development” 
Diane Felicio, Director of Development, provided an overview of a potential significant funding 
opportunity from The Atlantic Philanthropies (AP) and noted the confidential nature of the 
information she was providing to the Board.    
 

2



 
 

Diane noted that AP is looking to invest its remaining assets by 2016 in the form of capstone 
grants made to selected organizations it judges to be “anchor institutions” in fields it has 
prioritized in AP grant making to date. Community Catalyst could be selected as a potential 
recipient of a grant in the $10-20 million range.   On July 24th and 25th Chris Oechsli, AP 
president and final decision-maker; Steve McConnell, Country Director for US Programs; and 
Sara Kay, Program Officer, will be conducting a site visit with Community Catalyst.  This 
provides an opportunity to position Community Catalyst as an organization that AP will invite to 
submit a proposal.  In answer to a question as to whether a potential grant might be for 
unrestricted and/or endowment purposes, Diane’s opinion was that the award most likely 
would be targeted to support a specific project or set of broadly outlined activities.    
 
Community Catalyst’s chosen focus for the site visit will be its work already underway (with 
support from AP and other funders) to shape changes in health delivery for individuals dually 
eligible for Medicare and Medicaid and to promulgate adoption of best practices and health 
system transformation for this population among large health plans and providers serving a 
broader range of populations.   
 
In advising Community Catalyst about how to prepare for the site visit, Sara Kay recommended 
emphasizing how Community Catalyst would use AP resources to change policymaker and 
industry “conversation” from its current primary focus on cost reduction to one that links cost 
reduction to care quality improvement for consumers, and from a conversation primarily about 
“insurance” to one about “better care.”  She recommended showcasing why Community 
Catalyst’s expanded leadership would be indispensable to making this happen in a rapidly 
shifting marketplace. Finally, she recommended that the Commonwealth Care Alliance (CCA) be 
featured during the visit as a prime example of a “laboratory” that is testing new models of care 
demonstrating that improved care delivery and better outcomes for patients requires direct 
patient and other consumer engagement in care delivery and policymaking.  Accordingly, the 
site visit will feature CCA and include an additional off-site site visit with CCA plan members at 
Upham’s Corner Community Health Center, a CCA-participating care practice.  
 
Board members asked several questions about the site visit, including the following:   

 What is the relative emphasis on what Community Catalyst will do directly vs. what new 
alliances it will build?  

 What categories of investment could help frame specific choices –e.g., choice of geographic 
area for specific impact, such as the South?  

 Will the potential grant help grow Community Catalyst’s fundraising capacity? 

 What is the balance between using funds to invest in Community Catalyst versus “the 
field?”  

 Is Atlantic Philanthropies interested in making an investment in CCA per se? Diane 
responded that AP is interested in CCA’s model of care but the visit would focus on 
Community Catalyst.  

3



 
 

 Can the CCA model realistically be recreated, especially in regions such as the South which 
has a high infrastructure development needs?  The potential for replication looks very 
different from state to state.  

 Are we thinking differently about to what extent the focus is on “consumer engagement in 
health system reform” versus “consumer engagement in health?” Staff responses to these 
questions emphasized the view that “consumer engagement in health” is part and parcel of 
what is envisioned as being needed to accomplish system reform.  

 
Diane characterized AP’s particular interest as understanding not only the rationale for 
Community Catalyst’s approach but its “business” side: specifically, how Community Catalyst 
would  invest major resources from AP, and how the work expanded or created with AP 
resources would be sustained beyond the period of grant expenditure.  “What’s going to work, 
why, and how will it be sustained after Atlantic spends down?” 

 
Staff planning to date had identified the following categories of focus for potential use of AP 
funds:  
 
1. Investing AP $$ in models of care that are integrated, member-centric, cost-effective, and 

quality driven. In other words, CC would take money from Atlantic and invest it in an 
organization such as Vivily (through CCA) with expectation of financial as well as a mission 
return. [Note: Diane and Wendy reiterated that Community Catalyst is operating under a 
non-disclosure agreement regarding Vivily.] 
Board comments: The idea of investing in specific models demonstrating fundamental 
changes in delivery of care may be a good idea but investing in a “for-profit” with these 
funds could send the “wrong signal.” However, there was general consensus that the idea 
of investing in a CCA-Vivily initiative could be considered as a CC opportunity but should not 
be a centerpiece of any AP proposal without very strong encouragement from AP.  
 

2. Using AP $$ to reshape the existing abundance of consumer-centric infrastructure that CC 
has built to date and ready it – or them: the people, consumer advocates – to wield greater 
influence in the changing marketplace.  
This could involve: 

 Leading long-term, multi-sector scenario planning with and for the field 

 Developing “Next Gen Skills and Solutions” by boosting/reconfiguring CC’s TA to address 
the new marketplace complexities.  

 Creating a “C-Suite” volunteer/mentoring program that formalizes CC’s work business 
leader work and volunteer network into a national program 

 Establishing a Washington office to serve as a “thoroughfare” to DC for states 

 Further building CC’s fundraising capacity  
 

3. Launching a consulting/fee-for-service new line of business – to diversify Community 
Catalyst’s funding and assure its longevity. 
 

4



 
 

Additional Board member comments and questions about these ideas included: 

 Formalizing the Business Leaders program could be a good opportunity to deepen CC’s 
D.C presence and influence.  

 The struggle will be thinking about where consumer engagement can relate back to 
population health. 

 We need to determine how to reduce the gap within and between communities and 
places with and without smart capacity and good positioning to be fully engaged in 
delivery system reform.  

 Is this investment opportunity a ticket to long-term sustainability?  

 To what extent does Community Catalyst want to build “consumer presence?”  

 Would the investment in either the DC office or in CCA have a good return on 
investment? 

 
The meeting was adjourned by Wendy Warring at 12:11 PM. 

 
 

5



 
 

 
Community Catalyst 

Board of Directors: C4 Membership Meeting 
June 6, 2014 

 
 
In attendance: 
 
Members of the Board:  Kate Villers, Wendy Warring, Amy Whitcomb Slemmer (in person); Joia 
Crear Perry, Mark Schlesinger, Dan McGrath, Karen Hicks, Kavita Patel (by telephone) 
 
Apologies:  Anthony So, Diane MacDonald.  Robert Phillips  
 
Community Catalyst Staff:  Jacquie Anderson, Rosemarie Boardman, Diane Felicio, Donna Pina 
Robinson, Susan Sherry, Amy Rosenthal (by telephone) 
 
Election of 501 (c) (4) Board of Directors: 
 
The Governance Committee proposed election of Karen Hicks, John McDonough, Dan McGrath 
and Kate Villers to the Board Action Fund.  
 

Wendy moved to approve the slate with the caveat that we will seek to add one more 
outsider member by September, Mark Schlesinger seconded and it was  
 
Voted:  unanimously to accept the slate of Karen Hicks, John McDonough, Dan McGrath 
and Kate Villers to the Board Action Fund.  

 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 12:20 PM 
 
 

6



 
 

Community Catalyst 
Annual Meeting 

June 6, 2014 
 
Members of the Board:  Kate Villers, Wendy Warring, Amy Whitcomb Slemmer (in person); Joia 
Crear Perry, Mark Schlesinger, Dan McGrath, Karen Hicks, Kavita Patel (by telephone) 
 
Apologies:  Anthony So, Diane MacDonald.  Robert Phillips  
 
Community Catalyst Staff:  Jacquie Anderson, Rosemarie Boardman, Diane Felicio, Donna Pina 
Robinson, Susan Sherry, Amy Rosenthal (by telephone) 

 
Election of Officers 
 

The Governance Committee proposed re-election of the existing Board members to officer 
positions -- Mark Schlesinger, Clerk, and Diane MacDonald, Treasurer; Wendy Warring, Chair 
and Kate Villers, President. 
 

Karen Hicks noted that at some future date we need to have a more robust discussion 
about succession planning for board members. 
 

Karen Hicks moved, Amy Whitcomb Slemmer seconded and it was  
 

VOTED: unanimously to recommend to the Members to re-elect Mark Schlesinger, 
Clerk, and Diane MacDonald, Treasurer; Wendy Warring, Chair and Kate Villers, 
President  

 
Nomination of Board Members to New Terms 
 

The Governance Committee proposed re-election of Diane, Kate, Wendy, Karen to three year 
terms and Robert, Anthony, Kavita to two year terms. 
 

Mark moved, Dan seconded and it was  
 
VOTED: unanimously to recommend to the Members to reelect Diane, Kate, Wendy, 
Karen to three year terms and Robert, Anthony, Kavita to two year terms. 

 

Corporate Member Structure 
The Governance Committee proposed to change the following Community Catalyst Corporate 
Members structure to the following: 

 Add two additional board members to the corporate members structure: Chair of the 
Finance Committee and Chair of the Board 

 

Mark Schlesinger moved, Amy Whitcomb Slemmer seconded and it was  
 

Voted:  unanimously to recommend the proposed changes to the Community Catalyst 
corporate member structure  

 

The meeting was adjourned at 12:32 PM 

7



Consumer Advocates’ Biographies 
 
Cathy Levine, Executive Director, Universal Health Care Action Network of Ohio  
http://www.uhcanohio.org/ 
 
Cathy J. Levine, JD is the Executive Director of the Universal Health Care Action Network of Ohio 
(UHCAN Ohio), a consumer advocacy organization promoting quality, affordable health care for 
all Ohioans and building the consumer voice in health care decision-makers.  
Cathy is co-chair of Ohio Consumers for Health Coverage (OCHC), a coalition uniting broad 
consumer interests in health reform and convened Ohio Consumer Voice for Integrated Care, 
building the voice of older adults and people with disabilities in My Care Ohio, a demonstration 
enrolling Medicare/Medicaid beneficiaries in integrated managed care plans.  
 
Cathy serves as a consumer representative to the Ohio Patient Centered Primary Care 
Collaborative, the Governor’s Advisory Council on Payment Reform, and other public/private 
initiatives in the state to expand coverage, improve quality and reduce costs of health care. In 
January 2014, she was awarded Families USA’s annual Consumer Health Advocate award from 
Families USA, in recognition of her body of work. 
 
Cathy received a BA from New York University, a Master’s Degree from Goddard College, and a 
Juris Doctor from New England School of Law (Boston). She practiced law in Massachusetts, 
Pennsylvania, and Wisconsin, before settling in Ohio with her family. Cathy is on the board of 
trustees of Congregation Tifereth Israel and is active in BREAD (Building Responsibility, Equality 
and Dignity), uniting diverse faith congregations to work for justice.  
 
Antoinette Kraus, Executive Director, Pennsylvania Health Access Network 
http://pahealthaccess.org/ 
 
Antoinette Kraus currently serves as the Executive Director of the Pennsylvania Health Access 
Network (PHAN).  PHAN) is a statewide coalition of organizations working to protect high 
quality health insurance coverage for individuals and businesses and to expand coverage to the 
uninsured. PHAN’s main objectives are to expand access for the uninsured in Pennsylvania, to 
make comprehensive quality, affordable health care reform a major policy issue and to reform 
the private insurance system so that people have greater access to care.  Since joining PHAN in 
2008 Kraus has helped grow the Pennsylvania Health Access Network into the state’s largest 
statewide health coalition. She has established PHAN as a leader in providing education on 
health care reform and the implementation process in Pennsylvania. The Pennsylvania Health 
Access Network currently has over 60 participating organizations representing over one million 
Pennsylvanians from the faith, labor, small business, disability and nonprofit community.  
 
Kraus has helped run numerous campaigns to advocate on behalf of Pennsylvania consumers 
including campaigns to save Pennsylvania’s adultBasic program, a campaign to strengthening 
Pennsylvania’s Rate Review Process, a campaign to expand Medicaid in Pennsylvania and was 
instrumental in a statewide campaign to help pass the Affordable Care Act. Kraus has given 

8

http://www.uhcanohio.org/
http://pahealthaccess.org/


hundreds of presentations on the new law, has testified before Congress and has testified at 
the state capital on a variety of health policy issues.  She currently serves on the Philadelphia 
Inquirer’s health reform advisory board, the Delaware Valley Healthcare Council’s consumer 
advisory board, the steering committee for Raising Women’s Voices of Southeastern 
Pennsylvania and is a founding member of the Montgomery County Women’s Leadership 
Initiative.  In 2013 she received an Advocacy Vanguard Award from SEPA PRO-Act for her 
organization’s work on Medicaid Expansion. 
 
Adam Linker, Co-Director, Health Access Coalition/ North Carolina Justice Health Center  
http://www.ncjustice.org/ 
 
Adam Linker is Co-Director of the North Carolina Justice Center’s Health Access Coalition, a 
statewide nonpartisan consumer advocacy organization. Prior to serving as Co-Director, Adam 
spent six years as a health policy analyst at the Justice Center.  The North Carolina Justice 
Center is the state’s leading research and advocacy organization dedicated to transforming 
North Carolina’s prosperity into opportunity for all.  Their mission is to eliminate poverty in 
North Carolina by ensuring that every household in the state has access to the resources, 
services and fair treatment it needs to achieve economic security.  The Health Access Coalition 
works to expand access to quality, affordable health care for everyone in North Carolina, 
including people who are low-income, are elderly, or have disabilities. 
 
Adam analyzes state and federal health care legislation and regulations, lobbies lawmakers, 
writes reports and editorials, and speaks to community groups. He also represents consumers 
on several state task forces studying how best to implement federal health reform in North 
Carolina. In addition, Adam is a designated consumer representative to the National Association 
of Insurance Commissioners.  Before joining the Justice Center, Adam was a health care and 
education reporter for Triangle Business Journal. He has a master's degree in African American 
history from the University of Massachusetts at Amherst and a master's degree in journalism 
from UNC.  
 
Adela Flores-Brennan, Executive Director/Colorado Consumer Health Initiative (CCHI) 
http://cohealthinitiative.org/ 
 
Adela recently joined the staff of Colorado Consumer Health Initiative.  CCHI is statewide, non-
partisan, non-profit coalition of organizational and individual members, representing well over 
500,000 Coloradans. CCHI acts as a representative of the policy and advocacy priorities of our 
members at the the legislature and in the community to influence and shape effective health 
care policy on behalf of consumers.  CCHI works to achieve barrier-free access to quality and 
affordable health care for all Coloradans.  CCHI brings a consumer voice to inform and influence 
health care policy in Colorado with expertise in private market insurance and understanding of 
the intersection between private market insurance, public health insurance and the uninsured.  
 
 

9

http://www.ncjustice.org/
http://cohealthinitiative.org/


Adela comes to CCHI from Connect for Health Colorado, a marketplace non-profit opened to 
help individuals, families and small employers across Colorado purchase health insurance and 
apply to new federal financial assistance to reduce costs,  where she was director of 
community-based assistance programs, and managed two statewide networks of organizations 
to provide outreach, education and assistance with application and enrollment. Adela brings 
nearly 15 years of experience in law and public policy in Colorado, the past seven years in 
health care policy.  Adela graduated from the University of Denver with a BA and MA in 
International Studies and from the University of Colorado with her JD.  As CCHI’s executive 
director, she is responsible for advancing public policy, guiding strategic and operational 
planning, and providing leadership and management support. 

10



 
 

 

 

 
TO:   Board of Directors  
FROM:  Rob Restuccia and Jacquie Anderson 
DATE:   September 19-20, 2014 
RE:   Executive Director’s Report 
DIAL IN: (877-594-8353; participant code 92690821) 

 
We are looking forward to seeing you on September 19 – 20th in Philadelphia. We have a very 
full agenda and most Board members will be there in person.  Also, we hope that you will be 
able to participate in of the Consumer Voices for Coverage meeting that precedes our meeting.  
 
We both want to acknowledge the great work of the staff, and in particular, the senior 
management team, during Rob’s absence.  Given the level of activity including the impending 
office move, it was inspiring to see how everyone pulled together.   During dinner on Friday 
night, Rob will be sharing some of his reflections from his sabbatical and Jacquie will provide 
her perspective from her time as Acting Executive Director.   
 

Meet the Advocates  

 
Since our meeting coincides with our Consumer Voices for Coverage meeting, we have invited 
four advocates to join us on Friday for a discussion about their work and their partnership with 
Community Catalyst.  The four are:  Antoinette Kraus, Director, Pennsylvania Health Access 
Network; Adam Linker, Policy Analyst, North Carolina Justice Center; Adele Flores-Brennan, 
Executive Director, Colorado Consumer Health Initiative and Cathy Levine, Executive Director, 
UHCAH Ohio.  Their organizations exemplify the diversity of organizations we work with. 
Hopefully, the discussion will give you an on the ground perspective of health care policy and 
politics in the states and the technical assistance we provide to state advocates. Their bios are 
included in the packet.  We invite you to actively engage with these advocates as they have a 
lot to share.  
 

Update on Personnel 
 

Since our last Board meeting we have hired the following new staff: 

 

Jessicah Pierre, Communications Associate 

Provides support for Community Catalyst’s public information and communication strategies. 

Jessicah is responsible for helping develop and manage systems that promote the 

organization’s visibility by coordinating a daily news summary and insights to a broad network 

of health care insiders and support maintaining the website, database, and internal 

communications procedures. Prior to joining Community Catalyst, Jessicah worked at NARAL 

11



 
 

Pro-Choice Massachusetts as the Communications and Policy Advocacy Fellow.  Jessicah holds a 

bachelor’s degree in political science from the University of Massachusetts Amherst. 

 

Emily Polk, Program Associate   

Provides program and administrative support to the New England Alliance for Children’s Health 

team. She has prior experience interning at John Snow, Inc. for their Boston International 

Group as well as at their Health Services branch in Providence, Rhode Island. As an 

undergraduate, Emily volunteered as an Advocate with Health Leads; in that role, she worked 

with families of patients at Hasbro Children’s Hospital to access community resources and 

government assistance. Emily holds a bachelor’s degree in Community Health from Brown 

University. 

 

Rachelle Rubinow, Program and Policy Associate 

Rachelle provides programmatic support to the State Consumer Health Advocacy Program to 

strengthen Community Catalyst’s state-based outreach and enrollment work. She conducts 

policy analysis and research, tracks and collects information on best practices, and assesses 

trends in outreach and enrollment. She also assists with grants reporting and management, 

developing written materials and providing technical assistance on outreach, education and 

enrollment strategies.  She is a graduate of Cornell and Boston College Law School. 

 

Amanda McIntosh, Program Associate  

Amanda is the Program Associate for the Roadmaps to Health community grants project. She 

previously worked in community outreach and organizing at Health Care for All, serving as the 

Community Canvassing Coordinator for the MA Health Connector Public Education Campaign. 

Amanda holds a Master of Public Health from Drexel University in Philadelphia, PA, where she 

concentrated in Health Policy and Management. While at Drexel, Amanda dedicated her 

Master’s thesis to examining physician willingness to treat the Medicaid population, specifically 

in the context of the incentive to increase reimbursements for a two-year period under the 

Affordable Care Act.   

 

Puja Patel, Accounting Associate 

As the Accounting Associate for Community Catalyst, Puja Patel provides accounting support to 

the Finance department. Puja’s responsibilities include accounts payables and accounts 

receivables as well as performing a variety of accounting operations tasks. Prior to coming to 

Community Catalyst she has held various accounting roles with experience in tax preparation, 

fund accounting, and working for a non-profit accounting firm. Puja holds a bachelor’s degree in 

accounting from Assumption College.  

 

12



 
 

Sherry Dai, Program Associate   

Sherry Dai serves as a program associate for the State Consumer Health Advocacy Program. In 

this role, Sherry will be providing administrative and programmatic support to the State 

Consumer Health Advocacy Program Director and Team. Prior to joining Community Catalyst, 

Sherry interned at John Snow, Inc. for their Health Services Division, working on various issues 

including women’s health, health disparity, and emergency preparedness. As an 

undergraduate, Sherry worked as a research assistant at the Harvard School of Public Health 

focusing on health disparities in women’s health. Sherry holds a bachelor’s degree in Biology 

from Boston College. 

 

Sadie DeCourcy, Senior Policy Analyst 

Sadie DeCourcy is a Senior Policy Analyst at Community Catalyst, providing policy expertise. In 

this role she synthesizes and analyzes conversations in the community to share with federal and 

state policy makers. Prior to joining Community Catalyst, Sadie worked as the health policy 

director for Rhode Island Lieutenant Governor Elizabeth H. Roberts focusing primarily on long 

term care issues.  

 

Additionally, Sadie was the project manager for the Rhode Island Health Coverage Project, a 

Consumer Voices for Coverage grantee. Sadie graduated from The George Washington 

University with a degree in international affairs and received her JD from Suffolk University Law 

School. 

 

We are recruiting to fill four additional positions (the job descriptions are included in your 

packet).  We continue to look for highly qualified candidates from diversity backgrounds.  If you 

have any to recommend, please forward their names to Marla Shatkin.  Included in this packet, 

you will find revisions related to our human resource policies. 

 

The Move to One Federal Street 

 

As you are all aware, on starting next Friday  we are moving out of 30 Winter Street and to One 

Federal Street.  With over 120 people moving from Community Catalyst, Health Care For All and 

Health Law Advocates, some of our staff on the “Relocation Team” (including Rosemarie, who 

has done a fabulous job leading this effort) will remain in Boston during the Board meeting.   

Amy Whitcomb Slemmer, will also be in Boston during the meeting and will try to participate by 

phone on Saturday.  You have all received the invitation to our Open House on October 8th 4:00 

– 6:00 PM to celebrate the new space and the partnership.  We hope you can come. 

 

 

13



 
 

Friday’s Agenda 

 

Following the discussion of corporate business, we will focus on the work of the last few 

months.   Since time is limited, we suggest that you review the reports in your packet which 

give a good overview of the work that has occurred. Sue and Amy will report on programmatic 

activities.   Diane will discuss recent development activity including the invitation to submit a 

proposal to RWJF for our health system transformation efforts.  Next on the agenda, Michael 

Miller will provide an overview of the trending issues with a focus on the post- election climate 

and ACA implementation.   Finally, we will ask Board members to talk about what they are 

working on. 

 

Saturday’s Agenda 

 

In our ongoing efforts to make the strategic plan a living document, we will briefly review the 

outcomes and impacts that we hope to achieve by 2017 and are proposing that the Board 

approve a small change to the plan.  We also have two meaty discussions on Saturday.  The first 

is the role of the board in setting organizational direction.  Over the past three months, a 

number of board members have raised questions about the Board’s role in the development of 

major proposals following the June discussion of the opportunity provided by Atlantic 

Philanthropies.  There has been some concern among members that there is no formal process 

for the Board to approve new project areas such as substance use disorders.  The focus of this 

discussion will be on Board’s role in setting organizational direction beyond formally approving 

strategic plan and annual budgets.   

 

The framing of the board’s role discussion will lead us into our conversation about the Atlantic 

Philanthropies Initiative.  We are very fortunate that Atlantic Philanthropies is considering 

Community Catalyst as a potential anchor institution for one of its final grants.  During our 

meeting we hope to have a robust discussion of the various elements we are considering for 

our proposal in terms of the work in in sustaining the work and the organization. A key focus on 

sustainability conversation will be a presentation (by phone) by Steve Pratt of Root Cause who 

will discuss his results (to date) of the business planning assessment he has been conducting for 

Community Catalyst. 

 

The last topic for the day will be an update from the Governance Committee.  We have 

identified a new board member that we would like to present to the corporation.   We will also 

report on the results of our discussion with the corporate members about proposed changes in 

the corporate structure. 

 

14



 
 

Finally we will end with an Executive Session.   

 
As always, if there is anything you’d like to discuss with me prior to the Board Meeting, please 
contact Alexis (abrimagemajor@communitycatalyst.org) and she’ll be happy to arrange a 
convenient time to talk.   
 
 

 
Upcoming Board Meetings: 

December 12th – 9:00-2:30 PM- Boston - 1 Federal Street (Our New Office) 
 

15



 

 

               Summary of Policy Changes in Human Resources 

 
As part of implementing strategic goal 5, (Invest in Community Catalyst staff and organizational 

capacity to ensure we continue to be high performing, effective and evolving organization) the human 

resource department, led by Marla Shatkin with the oversight of the senior management and the 

involvement of staff has resulted in a number of important changes:  

 Medical and dental benefits were reviewed and revised effective January 1, 2014; new medical 

and dental vendor contracts were signed, with Tufts and Delta Dental, respectively; as a result of 

these changes, two significant improvements were made to the coverage overall:  Transgender 

Benefits were added to the medical coverage and all premiums were reduced with the 

exception of Family dental (which increased by $.08 per pay period); 

 401k participation was reviewed and Plan changes have been put in place during this past year 

to encourage increased participation, e.g., new employees are eligible at date of hire to open a 

401k account (previously, new employees were not eligible until they had completed three 

months of service);  participation has increased from 71% in September 2013 to 83% in 

September 2014; this is an area that we hope to drive toward a goal of 100% participation; 

 Hiring practices have been modified over the last year to encourage diversity and successful 

hires;  a part-time in-house professional recruiter has been hired to reduce ‘time to fill’ and 

handle the volume of open positions, successfully building a ‘pipeline’ of potential candidates 

for current and future positions; 

 The Orientation of new staff has been modified to include a more comprehensive Benefits 

Summary and organizational overview relative to policies and practices;  

 Several new policies which are included in board package have been implemented with the goal 

of ensuring equity, fairness, and transparency. 

 

16



 
 

Community Catalyst Policy 
 

Reduction in Force and At-Risk Staff Policy 
 

As part of Community Catalyst 2013 – 2017 strategic plan, a key priority for the organization is 
the investment in Community Catalyst’s staff and organizational capacity to ensure that we 
continue to be a high-performing, effective, and evolving organization.  Inclusive of this goal, 
prior feedback from staff, and our commitment to our staff members, the Senior Management 
Team has documented our commitment to retaining staff in the context of fluctuations in 
funding.  It is our intent to ensure an environment of transparency that reflects a commitment 
to the continued employment of staff while recognizing project and funding limitations.    
Recognizing that funding does fluctuate, when there is a pending reduction in or elimination of 
funding which places internal staff ‘at risk’ of job elimination and there are internal positions 
available in other programs/projects at the time of the funding reduction,  Community Catalyst 
will seek to place the affected staff in an available position within the organization. In 
consideration of this placement, the organization will take into account the requirements of the 
available position, the needs of the position’s program, and the at-risk employee’s skills, 
abilities, and length of service within the organization. 
 
Once a placement has been identified, the affected staff must have the following for the 
placement to occur:   

 A baseline of the skills and abilities necessary to perform the work; 

 A record of satisfactory performance in his/her current position;  

 A confirmed statement of his/her interest in the new opportunity.  
 
Presuming these criteria are met,  the first three (3) months that the staff member is in the new 
role will be a ‘consideration period’ during which time the staff member and his/her new 
supervisor will meet on a weekly basis to determine the viability of the ‘fit’ for both staff 
member and organization. At least two weeks prior to the end of the three-month period of 
consideration, there will be a discussion with the manager, and the affected staff member if 
appropriate, to determine the outcome of the consideration period and whether the 
employment relationship will continue.  Once confirmed, a letter will be given to the employee 
confirming the new position. 
 
If the salary range of the new position is different than that of the original position, or if the 
staff member’s salary is not commensurate with the budget of the new position, at the time of 
finalizing the new placement a salary change may be necessary.  This salary change may 
include, but is not limited to, one of the following potential actions:  1.) a ‘freeze’ on the staff 
member’s current salary until such time that the range ‘catches up’ with the staff member’s 
salary; 2.) a reduction in salary so as to ensure internal equity and appropriate placement 
within the salary range, inclusive of budget limitations; or 3.) a modification to the salary 
specific to the situation, determined at the time of placement confirmation.   
 

17



 
 

Every effort will be made to move staff member ‘at risk’ into a new position in the organization 
rather than the alternative of layoff.  
All hiring managers will be informed and coached as needed relative to this new policy and 
standard of practice. Exceptions to this policy will be considered and reviewed on a case by case 
basis as necessary.         

Community Catalyst Policy 
 

Promotion and Reclassification Guidelines and Processes 
 

As part of Community Catalyst 2013 – 2017 strategic plan, a key priority for the organization is 
the investment in Community Catalyst’s staff and organizational capacity to ensure we continue 
to be a high-performing, effective, and evolving organization.  Inclusive of this goal, prior 
feedback from staff, and our commitment to the continued development and growth of staff 
members, the Senior Management Team has documented our commitment to professional 
development, including an overview of our promotion process and the addition of a new 
internal ‘reclassification’ process.  It is our intent to ensure an environment that encourages 
and enables professional growth and development, one that is transparent to staff members.   
 
Underpinning these guidelines is our commitment to supporting training and professional 
development opportunities through funding attendance at conferences/ workshops and other 
development opportunities. When appropriate we also will provide staff members time 
necessary for these development opportunities as a part of their job responsibilities. Other 
development practices will continue to include ongoing skill enhancement and the 
advancement of knowledge and content expertise at the individual employee level. As always, 
leadership development and the expertise of staff in specific focal areas will continue to be of 
significant interest organizationally, and we will continue our successful practice of offering 
assignments to special projects and team leadership roles to ensure overall staff and 
organizational success. 
 

Community Catalyst Definition of Employee Growth and Advancement 
 

There are two distinct ways in which an employee can experience job growth and promotional 
advancement at CC. The first and more common process is through the availability of a higher-
level opportunity, usually created by someone leaving his/her position or through funding of 
new position(s).  Either of these events usually triggers a search which begins with an internal 
posting. The internal posting identifies the vacancy and communicates that vacancy 
opportunity to all current employees; one or more interested employees submit a 
resume/cover letter in application for the opening; the qualified internal employee(s) complete 
the interview and selection process; a finalist is selected, an offer is made, and the internal 
employee moves into the new position, leaving a vacancy which triggers a restart of the 
process.    
 
The second and less common way is through reclassification. Though initial job design and 
structure are the responsibility of the hiring manager, reclassification is generally the result of 

18



 
 

the incumbent growing beyond the original definition and design of the position. This growth is 
normally substantive and definable beyond the original description of assigned tasks and 
responsibilities, with the incumbent taking on additional qualitative responsibilities over a 
period of time inclusive of his/her current responsibilities.  
The incumbent’s ability to take on these additional higher level responsibilities is usually 
dependent upon two aspects of growth:  first, the employee has to have grown sufficiently in 
his/her capacity in the current position so as to have the capacity to take on additional higher-
level, more complex tasks.   
 
As a result of this growth and greater capacity, s/he is able to manage currently assigned 
tasks/responsibilities more efficiently and effectively so as to have time available for additional 
responsibility and accountability as well as greater complexity in assigned work.  Secondly, the 
job needs to lend itself to the expansion and inclusion of higher skilled, more complex work and 
contribution on the part of the incumbent.   
 
Though a reclassification is more incumbent-focused and a promotion, through a posted 
vacancy, more position-focused (or even organizationally-driven), both are forms of recognition 
for employees who make ongoing and significant work contributions to the organization.  Each, 
in different ways, results in increased responsibilities, higher degree of complexity of 
assignment and accountability, more opportunity for creativity in the work and workplace, 
usually more freedom to act with respect to assigned responsibilities/tasks, and more 
opportunities for leadership.  Additionally, increased accountability and responsibilities usually 
include an increase in pay and/or a change in job title.  
Promotion and Reclassification Guidelines 
 

1. Employees must be ‘in good standing’ with satisfactory performance reviews to be 
considered either for posted promotional opportunities or for reclassification.   

 
2. Open jobs will be posted internally for one-two weeks, dependent upon the likelihood 

of internal interest and capacity. All internal candidates will be assessed relative to an 
open position and qualified internal candidates will be given preferential consideration 
over external candidates. Under special circumstances, e.g., diversity needs of the 
organization, time sensitivity of an opening, unique skill set requirements for a given 
position, open positions may be posted internally and externally concurrently.  In those 
circumstances internal candidates will be considered as part of the larger applicant pool. 
In cases where an existing position is threatened and a comparable position is available 
the new position will not be posted.   

 
3. Throughout the search process internal candidates will be kept informed as to their 

status; and if not selected, each will be provided feedback as to why his/her candidacy 
was not successful.  

 
4. The reclassification process (different from the act of being promoted) normally will be 

initiated by the employee though may be initiated by the manager.   

19



 
 

5. The reclassification form will be completed by the incumbent and signed off on by the 
employee’s manager to confirm that s/he is aware that the employee has submitted a 
request for a reclassification review [NOTE:  process may include additional sign off by 
the Senior Manager].  The request is then submitted to Human Resources (HR) who is 
responsible for the reclassification process, a process that will include interviews with 
the incumbent and the manager (and may include the Senior Manager).  The process 
will be timely, usually to be completed within a 4-6 week timeframe.  At the completion 
of the process, HR will make a recommendation to the employee’s manager regarding 
the position and any resulting action relative to the employee’s employment status 
(e.g., title, level, salary).   

 
6. Normally there is a period of time at the outset of a new position that is designated as 

the ‘learning curve’ period for the incumbent, a period of time that may range from 
three (3) months to one to two (1-2) years, depending upon the complexity of the 
position.  Once this learning period is completed, an employee is considered ‘fully 
functional’ in his/her position and it is only after some period of time in this fully 
functional designation that an employee would normally initiate a reclassification 
review.   

 
Employee and Manager Responsibilities Relative to Professional Development, including 
opportunities for Promotion and Reclassification 
 
1. Employees are responsible for their professional growth and development and, as such, are 
encouraged to initiate regular discussion with their supervisor regarding their professional 
development goals and interests to ensure that they are effectively developing and deepening 
their skills and capacity in their current position.   
 
2. Employees are encouraged to seek professional development opportunities that expand 
their skills and competencies. Internally, this could occur by providing solutions to increased 
opportunities in a department and by expressing willingness to take on new responsibilities. 
 
3. Senior managers are expected to have regular discussion with those managers who report to 
them regarding the organization’s commitment to the internal hiring process. Senior managers 
will hold their managers accountable for the ongoing assessment and development of their 
staff, including identifying opportunities for growth and development. 
 
4. Managers are responsible for having professional development conversations with their 
supervisees at least once a year as a part of the annual performance review process. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20



 
 

Constraints 
 
In addition to our commitment to the guidelines and process outlined above, we also 
acknowledge some constraints in the implementation of these guidelines: 
 
•Job design and creation are work-driven and, as a result, the responsibility of the manager 
who must be responsive, as a first priority, to programmatic and organizational structure and 
need. 
 
•The issue of funding is a critical factor when determining opportunity for job growth and 
development.  Our ability to create positions, expand programs, and allow for other 
professional development opportunities is limited by funding. 
 
•Promotional opportunities, moving from one job to another, are limited by the number of 
roles and positions necessary to accomplishing the work of the organization.   
 
•Certain jobs don’t necessarily lend themselves to reclassification and, as a result, employees in 
those jobs may be limited in their reclassification opportunities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

21



Community Catalyst Human Resources Scan:   September 2013 to September 2014 

September  2014  

  
  
HR-related changes 9/1/2013-9/1/2014  

Posted Positions (9/1/13-9/1/14)  

40 positions posted   

21 of 40 posted positions -  'newly-created'  

19 - replacement positions  

currently:  4 positions in search (36 of 40 filled)  

  
  
New Hires (9/1 - 9/1)  

36 new hires   

8 (of 36) internal promotions/reclasses (~22%)  

28 new staff  

11 (of 36) diversity hires (~31%)*  

*In last quarter, diversity hires have increased to 46% (see 
below) 

 

  
Resigned/Terminated Employees (9/1-9/1)  

11 employees resigned/term'd  

7 resigned (3-school; 2-relocate; 2-new position)  

4 involuntary terms (3 of 4 within Probationary Period)  

  
  
  
Overall Staff Growth (9/1-9/1)  

As of 9/1/13 - 48 employees on payroll  

As of 9/1/14 - 65 employees on payroll  

(plus 4 Open Positions)  

Approximate staff growth (incl open positions) - 46%  

  
  
Turnover rate:  Fiscal Year-to-Date  (@August 31 2014)  

Community Catalyst                                                                           
8% 

(voluntary; does not incl 4 
terminations) 

2013 Voluntary Turnover Data From Compensation Force - CompData 
Surveys 

Not-for-profit 11% 

Healthcare 12.50% 

  
New Policies   

Promotion and Reclassification Guidelines and Processes, Nov 
2013 

 

Reduction in Force and At-Risk Staff Policy,  June 2014    

 

22



 
 

 

Memorandum 

 
TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM:  Susan Sherry, Deputy Director  
DATE:  September 19-20, 2014 
RE:   Program Report 
 
  

Strategic Goal 1 

Build a stronger advocacy infrastructure (resources, skills, relationships) to increase the 

power and influence of consumers in the health system nationwide. 

Supporting the Advocacy Infrastructure 

This quarter Community Catalyst continued to direct or manage financial support for state 
consumer health advocates. The ACA Implementation Fund (ACAIF) has been especially 
active.  The first round of seven RFPs for the Close The Gap Campaign (CTG = Medicaid 
expansion) were issued for those states mostly likely to move forward in the short-term (NH, 
ME, PA, VA, MI, FL, UT).  Planning for the second round of additional CTG grants is well 
underway.  The ACAIF also finalized three grants for state advocate work on Health System 
Transformation (HST).  Seven states received ACAIF grants for “Telling the Story of ACA 
Success”.  One  funder is contributing to the ACAIF so that Community Catalyst will be able to 
support additional states for LGBT health work.   These funds will be directed toward southern 
states. The Substance Use Disorder (SUD) Project awarded two subgrants for work on 
SBIRT (Screening Brief Intervention Referral to Treatment).  Staff are completing grant 
processing for the 18 RWJF Consumer Voices For Coverage (CVC) states to assure the start 
coincides with next open enrollment period.  The new CVC grant round will place strong 
emphasis on evaluation.   RWJF has engaged Mathematica to conduct an evaluation of its 
outreach and enrollment funding.  Staff will work closely with the Mathematica team to assure 
that the methodology is one that captures the complexity of the outreach and enrollment work. 

Organizational development support this quarter included finalizing an organizational 
assessment of Michigan Consumer for Health and planning for joint/board staff meeting to 
review the assessment.  Community Catalyst planned and facilitated a panel of 4 experienced 
state health advocate leaders to speak with the board of Kansas Health Consumer Coalition to 
assist them to determine the type of leadership it requires to move forward. Community 
Catalyst will work closely with Virginia Interfaith Center on an upcoming CVC staff leadership 
transition.   

Community Catalyst support to boost the communications capacity of state advocates has been 
especially effective as outlined in the Communications Report.  The rapid response materials are 
especially valued by state advocates.  Products such as the “Connecting Consumers to 
Coverage” report and the upcoming video about southern enrollment efforts also keep the work 
of state advocates visible to funders.   

23



 
 

SOLVING A FEDERAL BARRIER TO ENROLLMENT 

Numerous assisters shared their confusion and frustration 
on In the Loop regarding the process consumers have to 

go through to designate assisters as third-party 
representatives to communicate with the Call Center. A 

common concern was that the consumer’s consent didn’t 
last long enough or carry over from one call to the next. In 
the Loop reported these concerns to federal officials and as 

a result, the Call Center now accepts and records a 
consumer’s verbal authorization for an assister to 

communicate on her behalf for 12 months. CMS explained 
this new protocol in their CMS Assister Newsletter on 
August 19th, and In the Loop was able to share this 

information back with the In the Loop community who are 
now better able to assister consumers. 

 

The finishing touches are being put on a case study of how Take Action Minnesota has used the 
“system of advocacy” approach to increase its effectiveness.  This collaborative effort is 
designed to be used with funders (and advocates) including non-health funders.   

The June Southern Health Partners meeting in Atlanta was very well-received by advocates 
from 12 southern states.  Reflecting the deeper community engagement required by outreach 
and enrollment work, there were a significant number of new and more diverse participants at 
this year’s meeting.  The content integrated a focus on all six advocacy capacities tailored to the 
unique needs and circumstances of the southeast.  Despite all of the challenges posed by the 
political environment, the outreach and enrollment work brought new energy to the group.   

ACA Implementation 

Preparations for the next outreach and enrollment period are in full swing while navigators and 
assisters also work to meet the health literacy needs of those already enrolled.   Post open 
enrollment provided the opportunity to take lessons from the last round and develop plans to 
address gaps and improve efforts.  This has been the focus of Community Catalyst’s Missouri 
Outreach/Enrollment staff.  This staff team is planning 6 regional summits across Missouri prior 
to the start of the next enrollment period.  Community Catalyst staff facilitated discussions in 
Missouri between insurers, navigators and assisters.  Staff used work group calls, grant reports, 
and the State Consumer Health Advocacy Program google group to collect and 
disseminate outreach and enrollment best practices.  In response to the increasing demand to 
address health literacy needs Community Catalyst set up and maintains a drop box of literacy 
materials and information developed and used by advocates.  For the second year, Community 
Catalyst will receive and manage a RWJF grant that will support increased consumer application 
counseling capacity in nine target states with federal marketplaces.    

In the Loop (ITL) finally saw a drop off in site activity this quarter which allowed staff to focus 
on engaging inactive users and 
redesigning the website based 
on feedback from a user survey 
and one-on-one user interviews.   
Staff focused on planning and 
development of “mini-loops” 
tailored for State Based 
Marketplaces (SBMs) with 
Massachusetts Health Care For 
All being the first one to move 
forward with funding from the 
Blue Cross Blue Shield 
Foundation of Massachusetts.                               
New contracts with the National 
Immigration Law Center and the  

 

 

24



 
 

Georgetown Center for Health Insurance Reform will boost technical expertise around 
immigration and private insurance for ITL users.   Since ITL is funded through April 2015 a 
focus for the coming quarter will be longer term funding.   

Much of our Medicaid expansion effort this quarter focused on the CTG grant-making process 
which took more than typical time and effort due to the close collaboration with two other 
national partners (Center for Budget Policy Priorities and Center for Children and Families).  The 
Medicaid state advocate workgroup has been especially vibrant with strategies and tactics being 
actively shared across states including fostering great engagement from local elected officials.   
Community Catalyst added Wyoming to the nine states that already have Medicaid Counters 
tallying lost federal dollars.  The Counter continues to help generate media coverage.  
Community Catalyst’s Medicaid messaging toolkit continues to be heavily used by advocates.  In 
collaboration with CTG national partners staff are working to craft a discussion guide for focus 
groups that will take place in 5 key states and will help refine messaging.   

Strategic Goal #1 

Build a strong advocacy infrastructure (resources, skills, relationships) to increase the power and 
influence of consumers in the health system nationwide 

Webinars 

Utilizing Volunteers in Outreach, Education and Enrollment Work - Cover Missouri Coalition  

 

Learning Community Calls 

Introduction to Health Literacy for Missouri Certified Application Counselors  

Tips for applying for federal Navigator funding   

How State Based Advocates Made Open Enrollment a Success 

State savings resulting from expansion of substance use disorder treatment through Medicaid 
expansion 

Efforts to engage local officials and local leaders in Closing the Coverage Gap 

Outreach and enrollment opportunities for former foster youth  

Workgroup call for Federally Facilitated Marketplace States  

 

Toolkits 

Responding to 2015 insurance rates (communications tools, fact sheets and tips for advocacy and 
work with your state Dept. of Insurance)  http://www.communitycatalyst.org/resources/alerts/alert-
responding-to-2015-rates 

 

Blogs, Papers and reports 

Report:  "Mobilizing for Enrollment:  Connecting Consumers to Coverage   

Video: Olivia's Story  

Fact Sheets 

Regulations on enrollment renewals 

Working with your Dept. of Insurance on premium rate 

What rates and premium increases mean 

 

Comment Letters 

Signed on to NILC & ICIRR’s letter to Secretary Burwell – recommendations to fix barriers to 
immigrant enrollment. 

Private Insurance: Compiled, drafted, and coordinated sign ons for recommendations to improve 
federally facilitated Marketplaces to CCIIO.  71 sign ons 

25



 
 

Strong Collaboration Gets Things Done 

 “We’ve spoken to national organizations in 
the past about training opportunities and they 

didn’t always follow-up, you spoke with us, 
followed up immediately and we now have 3 

trainings scheduled. Thank you!”   

Comment from local Missouri group about the 
Community Catalyst Missouri LGBT Health 

Access trainings 

Signed on to NAIC consumer representative comments letters on network adequacy and 
improvements to model law 

 

Strategic Goal 2 

Assess and develop state and local partners’ capacity for organizing constituencies and 

campaigns for change. 

Community Catalyst recently provided planning grants to 8 locally based organizations of color in 
targeted geographic areas with high concentrations of uninsured immigrants, Asians and Latinos.  
The grants are to help local groups assess gaps and develop plans to address these in the next 
enrollment period.   

Partnerships and collaboration with LGBT groups continued to deepen over this quarter. In Missouri 
Community Catalyst partnered with a local 
LGBT group to offer 4 LGBT Access Trainings 
for assisters and navigators throughout the 
state.  Two of the local LGBT leaders 
attended White House briefing mentioning 
Community Catalyst as a local enrollment 
partner.  Other outreach and enrollment 
collaborations included national promotion of 
Out2Enroll materials, fact sheets from 
Farmworker Justice, as well Missouri webinars 

on Latino and faith-based engagement.  

The Dental Project continues to develop 
and strengthen working relationships with 
tribal organizations including the Center for Native American Youth, the National Council of 
American Indians, and the National Indian Health Board.   

Voices for Better Health began work on a forthcoming paper about using the dual eligible 
demonstration projects to promote health equity. This paper is an in-depth examination of the 
provisions contained in numerous documents related to the demonstrations and contains 
recommendations for states, CMS and advocates on how to reduce disparities among the dual 
eligible population.  The Hospital Accountability Project continues to support diverse pilot 
sites working on hospital community benefits and to deepen connections with community and 
economic development networks.  The Community Catalyst Alliance for Children’s Health 
Project (CCACH) recently issued RFPs for new work focused on health equity with invited 
grantees focused on engaging immigrant parents and children in Ohio; parent stories related to 
Medicaid expansion in Virginia; and parents with special needs children in Arizona.  The 
Roadmaps to Health Community Grants project began a Grassroots Engagement Webinar 
series focused on initiating and deepening community engagement and tactics for making 
grassroots work authentic and high-impact 

 

All of our sub-grant programs require grantees to identify specific strategies and actions that 
build meaningful engagement from communities of color and other under-represented 
constituencies.  Almost all grantees receiving support from CVC and the ACAIF make sub-

26



 
 

grants or contracts with a wide range of Latino, African-American, Asian and immigrant 
organizations.  The new CVC grants that start in October continue this trend with many states 
expanding their engagement with criminal justice and re-entry organizations and with 
organizations from under-enrolled ethnic communities.  Each of our VBH coalitions developed a 
workplan that specifically identified how they would create a diverse coalition and how they 
would reach older adults and people with disabilities from communities of color.  VBH also 
works with each grantee develop their attendance list for the VBH annual meeting in order to 
ensure diversity in participation.  
 

Strategic Goal #2 

Assess and develop state and local partners’ capacity for organizing constituencies and 
campaigns for change 

Webinars 

"Engaging Special Populations: Latino and faith-based outreach strategies"; Cover Missouri Coalition  

 

Blogs 

Blog: Medicaid and CHIP: Proven Tools for Health Disparity 

 

Strategic Goal 3 

Define Community Catalyst as the next generation advocacy leader by influencing 
health system policies and practices to be sensitive and responsive to consumer 

interests and needs.  

The “roadmap” to health system transformation report for consumer advocates is now in the 
drafting phase and should go to internal and external readers (including some board members) 
in next few weeks.  Planning for dissemination has begun.  The timing of the report release 
should coincide with the start of a new RWJF grant project – Consumer Voices for Better 
Health (CVBH) which we were invited to apply for and which is on track for a November start-
up.  Under the CVBH project Community Catalyst will design and implement a competitive 
process to select 6 state-based consumer advocacy health system transformation efforts for an 
18-month grant and technical assistance program.    

The relevant RWJF program staff and we recognize that this is a very short period of time to 
tackle the complex issues involved with meaningful delivery system reform so are working to 
establish interim outcomes that can lay the foundation for longer term investment by the 
foundation.  The program design incorporates a proactive local funder outreach strategy. 

In an effort to address concerns about the lack of accountability for Medicaid managed care 
plans, Community Catalyst researched information about for-profit plans that operate in 
multiple states. The plans operate under different names in different states and even within a 
state.  Information about corporate structure, quality of care, serious sanctions, etc. is difficult 
to compile and compare.  The research produced information that would be useful to 
advocates, policymakers and media once put into a searchable database.  After several 
discussions and a face to face meeting this summer, the Kaiser Family Foundation (KFF) 
decided to make this information available on their site in a searchable format.  Community 
Catalyst will be credited with conceptualizing the project.  KFF will continue to consult with 
Community Catalyst about design and additional content.   

27



 
 

NATIONAL EXPOSURE FOR CONSUMER ENGAGMENT 

CMS Webinars Participants State  

Meaningful Consumer 
Engagement: Consumer 

Advisory Committees 
296 

43 

Meaningful Consumer 
Engagement: Member 

Meetings 
217 

44 

Meaningful Consumer 
Engagement: Training 

Consumers 
272 

40 

Geriatrics Competent Care: 
Introduction and Overview 

227 
38 

Geriatrics Competent Care: 
Geriatric Assessment 

276 
TBD 

 

This information is especially timely as more states, especially in the south, rapidly move their 
Medicaid populations into managed care. 

The visibility of the Voices for Better Health (VBH) project took a significant leap forward 
with its participation in two 
Centers for Medicare and 
Medicaid Services national 
webinar series.  In June and 
July, VBH delivered three 
webinars as part of the 
Meaningful Consumer 
Engagement series.  In 
August, in partnership with 
the American Geriatrics 
Society, staff delivered the 
Geriatrics Competent Care 
series.   

The webinars were well-
attended by hundreds of 
health plans, providers, 
advocates and others from 
across the country. (The 
latter series was provided 
under a contract from The 
Lewin Group as part of their 
federal CMS TA contract.  Community Catalyst hopes to see future revenue of this type.)   

VBH continues to deepen working relationships between geriatrics providers and consumer 
advocates in VBH states. The geriatrics providers are thrilled to be at the policymaking tables 
which advocates have access to and the expertise of the providers is invaluable to advocates.  
Relationships with health plans continue to expand.   

Addressing Substance Use Disorders (SUD) is a critical element of reforming the health 
delivery system.  The SUD project developed tools to address the economic benefits and 
savings from more SUD treatment resulting from Medicaid expansion.  The SBIRT (Screening 
Brief Intervention Referral to Treatment) component of the SUD project was officially launched 
this quarter a message platform for advocates, a Health Affairs blog, and pick-up from at least 
15 state media outlets.   Supporters of improved SUD services, including law enforcement, 
continue to expand their involvement in Medicaid expansion efforts.   

This quarter Dental Project focused on preparing for the 2015 state legislative sessions 
through state-specific planning meetings and a convening of national and state partners.  
Strengthening grassroots engagement along with stronger messaging and communications, 
including social media, will be important to countering continued opposition from organized 
dentistry.  Staff continue to work with national partners to enlist dentist champions including 
within FQHCs including making the business case for mid-level practitioners on the dental team.  
The national partners are also collaborating to establish educational requirements and to enlist 
support within community colleges.   

28

https://www.resourcesforintegratedcare.com/webinar/series/consumer-engagement-tax
https://www.resourcesforintegratedcare.com/webinar/series/consumer-engagement-tax
https://www.resourcesforintegratedcare.com/Geriatrics_Competent_Care_Webinar_Series
https://www.resourcesforintegratedcare.com/Geriatrics_Competent_Care_Webinar_Series


 
 

CCACH staff continued their efforts to promote renewal of the federal Children’s Health 
Insurance Program (CHIP) by supporting state-level stakeholder education with a variety of 
policy and communications tools.  Staff coordinate closely with national children’s advocates 
including collaboration with CCF on coverage for former foster youth and a joint CHIP toolkit.  
As noted in Goal 1 above, CCACH is supporting building new organizing capacity in Arizona, 
Ohio and Virginia.  Extensive planning and site visits took place to determine the best 
opportunities for engaging parents and for strengthening the connection between child 
advocates and health reform advocates in each state.   

The Hospital Accountability Project (HAP) has been working over the past year to create 
new resources and tools that build community capacity for meaningful engagement with 
hospital community benefit planning and activities. A new curriculum, Putting People First: 
Working with Hospitals to Improve Community Health, was developed and successfully piloted 
in three communities.  In August, the entire curriculum and other related resources were 
organized into a new section of the Community Catalyst website that makes a wealth of 
materials available to communities everywhere. The HAP staff will feature this new section of 
the website on a September 26th conference call for members of our hospital community benefit 
learning community. Staff made significant progress in assisting researchers at The George 
Washington University (GWU) in their effort to develop and test a prototype web tool that will 
improve the accessibility and utility of the financial data hospitals submit annually as part of 
their IRS 990 community benefit reports.  This project is funded by the Robert Wood Johnson 
Foundation and as part of this effort Community Catalyst will be developing complementary 
tools to familiarize community members with community benefit background and concepts.  

Strategic Goal #3 

Influence health system policies and practices to be sensitive and responsive to consumer interests 
and needs 

Webinars 

Meaningful Consumer Engagement:  
 Consumer Advisory Committees 

 Member Meetings 

 Training the Consumer 

Geriatric Competent Care:  
 Introduction and Overview  

 Comprehensive Assessment 

Change AGEnts Initiative Webinar: Joining Forces Working with Consumer Advocates to promote 
Integrated Care  

 

Learning Community Calls 

“Shining a Light on Drug Company Payments to Doctors”       

How the Substance Use Disorder (SUD) community is impacted by the coverage gap and strategies 
for incorporating the voice of the SUD community into coverage gap campaigns 

 

Toolkits 

Conflict of Interest Toolkit on Samples - 
http://www.communitycatalyst.org/resources/publications/document/Toolkit-9-Samples.pdf 

Conflict of Interest Toolkit on Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committees  

Messaging the Coverage Gap for SUD advocates  

29

http://www.communitycatalyst.org/initiatives-and-issues/initiatives/hospital-accountability-project/community-benefit-tools-and-resources-for-chna


 
 

Messaging Platform for Youth SBIRT project  

Talking points on SBIRT effectiveness 

Meaningful Consumer Engagement : Training Consumers for Engagement - 
http://www.communitycatalyst.org/resources/tools/meaningful-consumer-engagement/training-
consumers-for-engagement 

Meaningful Consumer Engagement:  Focus Groups - 
http://www.communitycatalyst.org/resources/tools/meaningful-consumer-engagement/focus-groups 

 

Blogs, papers and reports 

Blog: FAQs on CHIP - a messaging tool 

Paper: “Evaluation of a Model Comparative Drug Price Resource in Fostering Physician - Patient 
Engagement, Lowering Consumer Costs and Improving Adherence” published in  on-line journal 
Innovations in Pharmacy 

Post Script Blogs: 
 “Who's Watching the Chicken Coop? The FDA's Flawed Drug-Approval Process”  

 “Use as Advertised Rather than Directed” on direct to consumer advertising and the impact 

on prescribing “ 

 “21st Century Snake Oil” on overuse of treatment driven by advertising and screening” 

Blog: Health Affairs Blog: Alcohol & Drug Prevention: A New Initiative to Keep Youth on a Healthy 
Path 

Good Luck with That! (July 1, 2014)  

Blog: A National Food Fight: Congress v. our Children When? 

 

Fact sheet  

What is SBIRT one-pager 

 

Comment letters 

Letter to manufacturer Gilead Sciences about high price of Sovaldi 

Sign on letter to FDA about guidance that would weaken standards drug labeling 

Sign on letter to US Trade representative to protect public programs (Medicaid, Medicare, etc.) from 
possible legal challenges under international trade agreements. 

 

Speaking engagements 

Improve Oral Health In Rural Communities/Association of Healthcare Journalists    

Dental Therapy Accreditation Standards 

Voices for Better Health and Geriatric Provider Engagement -- The John A. Hartford Foundation 
Trustees  

Engaging Older Consumers in Health Care Design and Delivery -- Practice Change Leaders Program  

Integrated care for Dually Eligible Beneficiaries: Overview -- Rhode Island Integrated Care Initiative 
Consumer Advisory Committee  

Meaningful Consumer Engagement -- CEO Summit, Association of Community-Affiliated Plans  

Dual Eligibles – Tennessee Health Care Campaign  

Dental Therapy Accreditation Standards/Dental Therapist Project Convening 

Connecticut Voices - Presentation on Churn  at Connecticut Voices  
 

30



 
 

Two Community Catalyst programs are in transition and phasing out – the Roadmaps to 

Health Community Grants program will wrap up its grant program early next year and the 
bulk of Prescription Access and Quality project will end this year. 

The new RWJF strategy plan emphasizing a “Culture of Health” resulted in the Foundation 

shifting its programmatic strategy around the Roadmaps to Health Program and ending the 
Community Grants Program managed by Community Catalyst.  The focus of staff efforts this 
quarter has been to provide robust technical assistance and support to the current grantees and 
to draw out lessons and case examples of effective strategies to promote community health.   

One grantee, Priority Spokane, received a 2014 RWJF Culture of Health Prize for its efforts to 
give everyone the opportunity for a healthy life. The award recognized the grantee’s work 

developing supportive models to prevent middle school truancy. In the coming quarter, staff will 
focus on maintaining grantee support and closing out the grant program.  With grant 
extensions and close-out the Roadmaps project will continue into the first quarter of the year.  
RWJF has expressed interest in continuing to have Community Catalyst involved in its evolving 
County Health Rankings and Roadmaps work including in strategic planning discussions.  In the 
coming month we will explore more fully what this role may look like.  We will explore the 
potential to integrate a potential hospital community benefits component to the Rankings and 
Roadmaps effort.   

The Prescription Access and Quality (PAQ) project is wrapping up its Conflict of Interest 
(COI) work with completion of a Toolkit on Samples; drafting of COI on Pharmacy and 
Therapeutics Committees; a draft journal article about COI and academic medicine; and, 
piloting of COI Policy Effectiveness Survey at 3 institutions.  Planning is underway for a final 
COI Roundtable for medical schools and academic medical centers in October.   

Staff published an article based on our original research showing potential connection between 
provider knowledge of drug costs and their willingness to engage patients in shared decision 
making on drug selection and drug affordability.   Community Catalyst submitted information to 
CMS Office of Program Integrity to help describe different types of industry payments to 
physicians on the CMS Open Payments website.   

PAQ has funding for a small 2015 research project (one day/week) to analyze the four COI pilot 
sites and conduct a comparative analysis.  The research will strengthen the ability of institutions 
to effectively use the instrument to improve the implementation of their policies, and will 
contribute to our understanding of current on-the-ground COI policy implementation 
opportunities and challenges. It will also help in assessing the overall impact of institutional COI 
policies. 

31



 
 

Memorandum 
 
TO:    September 8, 2014 
DATE:    Board of Directors 
FR:    Amy Rosenthal, Director of External Affairs and Policy 
RE:    Quarterly External Affairs Report to Community Catalyst Board of Directors 
 
 
Over the past quarter, our External Affairs team and various Project Directors have worked 
closely with a range of national partners and held numerous meetings with Administration and 
Congressional offices.   
 
When we participate in high‐profile meetings in Washington, DC, these meetings not only help 
us achieve specific policy goals, but they also advance Community Catalyst as an organization 
and help us achieve two of our strategic goals: 
 
Strategic Goal 3:  Define Community Catalyst as the next generation advocacy leader by 
influencing health system policies and practices to be sensitive and responsive to consumer 
interests and needs  
 
Strategic Goal 5: Invest in Community Catalyst’s staff and organizational capacity to ensure we 
continue to be a high‐performing, effective and evolving organization. 
 
There are two meetings in the past quarter that we wanted to elevate to your attention that  
help further these strategic goals.  
 
Meeting the New Secretary of Health and Human Services 
Secretary Burwell assumed office in mid‐June 2014.  As part of her senior staff’s effort to get 
her up‐to‐speed, they quickly scheduled a meeting with 12 leading health care organizations 
involved in ACA implementation; Community Catalyst was one of these groups.  While the 
meeting had to be pushed back due to unforeseen Cabinet responsibilities for the Secretary, 
the meeting occurred in August.  
 
Amy Rosenthal attended the meeting. The Secretary gave each individual the chance to raise 1‐
2 issues that we thought were important for HHS to know going into year two of open 
enrollment.  Community Catalyst was able to raise three issues: 

 the incredible importance of funding enrollment assistors, including consumer 
assistance programs and non‐profit Navigators 

 the great need to emphasize health literacy and a reminder that while the number of 
insured is important, the value of having people understand and use their coverage to 
lead healthier lives is the real goal  

 the strategic value of HHS not “giving away the bank” on upcoming Medicaid waivers, 
making it harder for us to advance our Medicaid expansions campaigns 

 

32



 
 

As an aside, HHS staff assigned meeting participants seats, and it became apparent the most 
influential groups straddled the Secretary and those less influential were at the far end of the 
table. It is worth noting that HHS staff positioned us on par with the Center for American 
Progress and with just two organizations between us and the Secretary. It was a subtle 
statement but another reminder about the prominent role we have come to play within HHS 
and the growth in visibility we have experienced in how those in the Administration view us.  
 
Strategy Meetings with the White House and HHS 
Valerie Jarrett is a key advisor to the President and someone we previously tried to reach out 
to.  Over the past several months, her White House staff has become more active and is playing 
a leadership role within the White House on ACA implementation, outreach and enrollment. 
They are doing this work in close partnership with HHS External Affairs, staff who are some of 
our closest Administration allies.   
 
Valerie Jarrett’s staff contacted us over the summer to get a better understanding of 
Community Catalyst – our scope, our reach and our influence.  Our first background meeting 
was extremely positive, and we have recently joined a very small group of organizations – Enroll 
America, SEIU, Center for American Progress,  Planned Parenthood, and us – to serve as 
advisors to and partners with the White House and HHS as we enter into the second year of 
open enrollment.  
 
Meetings occur every week, and alternate between in person meetings and phone meetings.  
We review messaging documents, event calendars for Administration officials, thematic week 
schedules (women’s health week, faith week, etc), regional HHS Summit plans, etc.  While we 
have only had a couple of meetings thus far, we have already offered ways of using our 
networks to enforce Administration plans, and we have pushed back on plans that we believe 
are not strategic.  
 
If the Board is interested, we will be happy to report back on how these meetings progress over 
the next quarter.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

33



 

Community Catalyst is a national non-profit advocacy organization building  
consumer and community leadership to transform the American health care system.  

www.communitycatalyst.org 

 
 

Memorandum 

 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FROM: DIANE M. FELICIO, PH.D., DIRECTOR OF DEVELOPMENT 
DATE: SEPTEMBER 2014 
RE: QUARTERLY REPORT ON DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES 
 

 
As the Board is well aware, the Atlantic Philanthropies site visit was a top priority during this 
last quarter. A report summarizing the visit and outcomes was sent to the full Board on August 
22 and we will be spending a chunk of time at the September meeting discussing the visit, our 
proposal, and the status of our business planning work. Therefore, this third quarterly report 
provides an overview of other development related activities, June – August, aside from Atlantic 
and business planning. As always, what is highlighted here is meant to complement, in 
particular, Sue’s report on programmatic activities and Rosemarie’s report on the budget. 
 

FOUNDATION AND PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS 
 

Proposals and Reports Submitted1 
 

FY14 (to date) FY13 
 

FY12 FY11 
 

18 Proposals 
 

40 Proposals 
 

36 Proposals 
 

28 Proposals 
 

47 Reports 
 

48 Reports 
 

49 Reports 
 

41 Reports 
 

 

 
 Consumer Voices for Coverage 

 This program remains a foundational element of our funding from RWJF. Our 
grant was recently renewed for another year at $1,775,730, a $200,000 increase 
over last year. During the upcoming grant period Community Catalyst, as NPO, 
will provide TA that helps strengthen OEE efforts and advance current and 
emerging ACA implementation issues; further develop our strong national Peer 
to Peer Learning Community; and continue to help advocates hone their 
coordinated voice as they engage with federal and state policymakers and 
opinion leaders. 

 

                                                 
1 See below for a full listing of 2014 proposals and reports. 

 
 

34

http://www.communitycatalyst.org/


 

Community Catalyst is a national non-profit advocacy organization building  
consumer and community leadership to transform the American health care system.  

www.communitycatalyst.org 

 Health System Transformation 
 Building on our strong relationship with RWJF, we have been invited to 

submit a proposal for our HEALTH SYSTEM TRANSFORMATION efforts. 
Changes underway in the organization and financing of medical care have 
created new opportunities to address current deficiencies in the delivery of 
care. At the same time, care for vulnerable populations could be undermined 
by these same delivery and financing structures depending on how they are 
designed. While there is federal and national support for these changes, the 
actual implementation is taking place at the state policy and local delivery 
system levels. Fortunately, advocates are at many of the relevant decision-
making tables. However, hospitals, doctors, insurers and other institutional 
stakeholders are all better informed and better positioned than individual 
consumers to influence the shape of these system changes. Advocates lack 
the dedicated resources and capacity necessary to effectively focus on these 
issues. Our work funded through this RWJF initiative will directly address 
these capacity needs.  During the grant period, Community Catalyst will plan 
and implement a 12-month grant and technical assistance program to enable 
advocates in six targeted states (TBD) to carry out state and local health 
system transformation campaigns. We are optimistic that this grant will 
extend beyond the initial 12-month timeframe, which positions us well to 
use Year 2 (and any funding thereafter) towards any matching requirements 
associated with the prospective Atlantic Philanthropies award. 

 
 Substance Use Disorders 

 This has been a stellar year for the SUD program. Along with funds from Conrad 
Hilton Foundation and Open Society Foundations (detailed in previous 
Development reports), the program received a gift through Shatterproof 
(http://www.shatterproof.org/), a new non-profit dedicated to eradicating 
alcohol and drug addiction among youth. This $100,000 award (over two years) 
was made possible due to an over year-long round of cultivation activities with 
the organization’s founder and CEO, Gary Mendell, and it stands as one of our 
most successful individual donor success stories. The award was the first ever 
made by the foundation and Mr. Mendell was thrilled to select Community 
Catalyst for the honor and recognition. 

 
SITE VISITS 
 
Along with an active proposal and report schedule, the third quarter was also marked by 
several sight visits in addition to The Atlantic Philanthropies visit. For example, representatives 
from the Federal Agencies Project, funders of our LGBT work ($100,000 annually), visited with 
Community Catalyst staff in July to learn more about our Outreach & Enrollment and Medicaid 
Expansion efforts. Over the last two years, Community Catalyst has been supporting consumer 
health advocates as they bring LGBT health equity to the forefront of the implementation of the 
ACA (e.g., state-specific efforts to enact the ACA’s non-discrimination standards and best 

35

http://www.communitycatalyst.org/
http://www.shatterproof.org/


 

Community Catalyst is a national non-profit advocacy organization building  
consumer and community leadership to transform the American health care system.  

www.communitycatalyst.org 

practices for enrollment). We recognize the necessity of building strong partnerships between 
consumer health and LGBT advocates in states and identifying common issues across political 
and geographic identities. Our reach on LGBT health equity extends to Alabama, Colorado, 
Georgia, Illinois, Louisiana, Massachusetts, Michigan, Minnesota, New Jersey, New Mexico, 
New York, Texas, and Utah.  
In addition, the anonymous funder that supports NEACH visited Community Catalyst in August. 
This funder was initially responsible for extending NEACH’s reach beyond New England to Ohio, 
Arizona, and Virginia. Following this most recent site visit we were invited to request additional 
funding to increase the number of states outside New England to include North Carolina, 
Florida, and Colorado. These are priority states for the funder and for Community Catalyst. We 
expect $200,000 to support our TA and $250,000 in sub-granting dollars. The emphasis will be 
on ACA implementation, Medicaid, and CHIP. (Note: we have been referring to our children’s 
work out of New England as Community Catalyst Alliance for Children's Health (CCACH)). 
 
Finally, the executive director and senior health policy officer from the Tufts Healthplan 
Foundation met with Voices for Better Health staff to begin a discussion about potential 
partnerships. This visit was a direct outcome of a presentation Renee Marcus Hodin gave to the 
Hartford Foundation board. The policy officer from Tufts was also at that meeting and was 
impressed with Renee and VBH’s work. We have not received a grant from Tufts previously 
(their emphasis has been on direct service), but they are beginning to move into the policy 
arena and as a result we see much more promise for funding.  

 ACA Implementation Fund 
 

 
Contributions to the ACA Implementation Fund by National Organizations 

    
(in thousands) 

  

        

 
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Total 

 

        The Nathan Cummings 
Foundation $500 $500 $500 $150 

 
$1,650 

 CVS Caremark 
  

$75 $15 
 

$90 
 Ford Foundation** $500 $500 $500 

  
$1,500 

 HJW Foundation $500 $500 $500 
  

$1,500 
 HJW Foundation 

(Medicaid Expansion)    2,590  2,590  

Langeloth Foundation $500 $400 $400 $400 
 

$1,700 
 The Atlantic 

Philanthropies ($2M/4yrs) $500 $500 $500 $500  $500 $1,500 
 Rockefeller Foundation $200 

    
$200 

 Wellspring Advisors 
 

$150 $300 $300 
 

$750 
 The California Endowment 

** $300 $300 $300 
  

$900 
 

        Total $3,000 $2,850 $3,090 $3,940 
 

$12,380 
  

36

http://www.communitycatalyst.org/


Title Type Responsible Required Notes

x 6 Ford Foundation: ACA Fund Final Report Jacquie Narrative and Financial

x 10 Wellspring Advisors (Anon) Report Jacquie Narrative and Financial

x 10 Atlantic Philanthropies Final Report Jacquie Narrative and Financial

x 13 RWJF #70986 Outreach and Enrollment Budget Report 1 Donna, Reena/Christine Financial

x 15 Nathan Cummings: Technical Assistance Proposal Jacquie, Reena Narrative and Financial

x 15 Nathan Cummings: ACA Fund Proposal Jacquie Narrative and Financial

x 20 Packard Foundation: NEACH Final Report Eva Narrative and Financial

x 22 MFH Proposal: Advocacy Renewal Proposal Reena, Angela Narrative and Financial

x 31 Langeloth Foundation: ACA Final Report Jacquie Narrative and Financial

x 31 Public Interest Projects: LGBT Final Report Reena, Emily Narrative and Financial

x 31 Endowment for Health: NEACH Final Report Eva Narrative and Financial

x 31 MFH: Report on Activities Interim Report Angela Narrative   

x 14 RWJF Proposal: Roadmaps Proposal Phillip Narrative and Financial

x 14 Nathan Cummings: ACAIF Report Jacquie Narrative and Financial

x 14 Nathan Cummings Foundation: Technical Asst Report Reena Narrative and Financial

x 17 California Healthcare Foundation Report Marcia Narrative and Financial

x 18 Wyss Foundation: Medicaid Expansion Proposal Jacquie, Reena Narrative and Financial

x 25 Alki Fund: SHP Final Report Reena Narrative and Financial

x 26 Wyss Foundation: Medicaid Expansion Final Proposal Jacquie, Reena Narrative and Financial

x 28 HJW: ACA Final Report Jacquie Narrative and Financial

x 28 RWJF Final Report Donna/Diane Financial

x 28 GWU Schedule H Web Tool Interim Report Jessica/Michele Narrative

x 28 Scan Foundation Interm and Final ExpenditureAlice Narrative and Financial

x 11 OSF Proposal: ACA and Latino Enrollment Proposal Sue, Christine Narrative and Financial

x 15 Scan Foundation Evaluation Report Alice Narrative and Financial

x 15 MFH: #13-0630-COV-13 Interim Report Dara Narrative and Financial

x 18 Wellspring Proposal: NEACH/Subgrants Proposal Eva Narrative and Financial

x 31 MFH: #13-0692-HPC-3 Final Report Angela Narrative and Financial

x 31 Wellspring LGBT Proposal Proposal Emily Narrative and Financial

x 31 Federal Agencies Project Proposal Emily Narrative and Financial

Apr

x 2 Physicians Foundation Proposal Diane, Rob Narrative and Financial

x 11 Colorado Health Foundation - Health Literacy Proposal Reena Narrative and Financial

x 15 Pew:PACME Quarterly Report Marcia Narrative and Financial

x 24 Kentucky Foundation for Health: SHP Proposal Reena Narrative and Financial

x 30 RWJF: CVC Interim Finance Report Reena/Donna Financial 

x 30 Consumer Health Foundation: SHP Proposal Reena Narrative and Financial

May

x 9 Healthcare Georgia Foundation: SHP Proposal Reena Narrative and Financial

x 9 Hagens Berman TriCor Proposal Wells, Marcia Narrative and Financial

x 15 Atlantic Philanthropies Interim Report Renee Narrative and Financial

x 30 RWJF: CACI Interim Report Reena/Christine, Donna Financial

x 31 Cox Charitable Trust: NEACH Report Eva, Amy Narrative and Financial

Jun

x 2 Gund: Technical Assistance Interim Report Reena Narrative and Financial

x 2 Hartford Foundation Interim Expenditure Report Donna, Renee Financial

x 6 RWJF: CVC TAD Proposal Reena Narrative and Financial

x 6 Roadmaps Network Lead Proposal Phillip, Sue Narrative and Financial 

x 9 RWJF HST Proposal Sue  Narrative and Financial

x 15 MFH: #13-0630-COV-13 Interim Report Dara, Donna Narrative and Financial

x 15 MFH: #14-0022-HPC-14 Quarterly Report Reena, Angela Narrative

x 30 RWJF: Roadmaps #70788 Final Report Phillip Narrative and Financial

x 30 PIP Interim Report Emily Narrative

x 1 Packard Foundation 2014: NEACH Interim Report Eva, Donna Narrative and Financial

x 14 RWFJ 70986 Budget Period 2 Financial Report Donna, Reena Financial  

x 15 PEW: PACME Quarterly Report Marcia, Donna Narrative and Financial Online submission to pewtrusts.org/pewportal

x 22 BCBSMA Proposal Amy Concept Paper

x 27 Foundation for a Health Kentucky - SHP Final Report Reena Narrative and Financial

x 31 Consumer Health Foundation - SHP Final Report Reena Narrative "Brief report summarizing the highlights of the conference"

x 31 California Endowment Final Report Jacquie Narrative and Financial

x 31 Ford - In The Loop Final Report Amy  Narrative and Financial Report templates here

x 1 Kresge - Community Benefits Third Annual Report Jessica, Sue Narrative and Financial Reporting details in grant agreement 

x 1 GWU - Schedule H Web Tool Interim Report Jessica, Michele Narrative   Reporting details in grant agreement 

x 11 Kresge - LOI (Close the Gap) Proposal Michael Narrative and Finanical First stage application/LOI

x 15 RWJF #70986: Outreach and Enrollment Report Reena, Christine Narrative and Financial

x 18 RWJF #71426 Renewal, Outrearch and Enrollment Proposal Reena, Christine Proposal

x 18 RWJF Health System Transformation Proposal Sue /Angela Proposal 

x 29 Surdna Final Report Report Jessica Narrative and Financial Instructions on filing a report: www.surdna.org

x 29 WK Kellogg - Oral Health Annual Report David, Sue Narrative and Financial

31 CT Children's and Boston Children's Final Report Eva Narrative No written agreement

x 2 Shatterproof Interim Report (SUD) Interim Report Alice Narrative

10 Open Society Foundation Proposal Alice Proposal

15 CT Health Foundation Proposal Eva Proposal On churn

15 Hartford Foundation (VBH) Annual Progress Report Renee Narrative Hyperlink is to reporting dates, not agreement

15 MFH:   #14-0022-HPC-14 Quarterly Report Reena, Angela Narrative Quarterly report of activities (6/14-8/14)

22 Missouri Foundation for Health Proposal Dara Proposal TA ECTCA

30 PIP: Second Interim Report Interim Report Emily Narrative and Financial

Oct

15 MFH #13-0630-COV-13 Final Report Dara Narrative and Financial

15 Wyss (Herndon) Final Report Kathy, Donna Narrative and Financial Grant information in Herndon file in Development Folder

15 Surdna: Community Benefit Proposal Jessica Proposal

30 RWJF CVC TAD #71235 Final Report Reena Narrative and Financial

31 Open Society Foundation: ACA Enrollment Final Report Sue, Christine, Donna Narrative and Financial

Nov

1 PACME Final Report Final Report Marcia, Donna Narrative and Financial Online submission to pewtrusts.org/pewportal

14 Packard Foundation: NEACH 2014 Work Final Report Eva Narrative and Financial Check reporting process with Trisha Violette

15 Wyss Foundation: Medicaid Expansion Campaign Interim Report Jacquie Narrative and Financial

30 RWJF #71426: CAC Final Report Reena, Christine Narrative and Financial

31 RWJF #71426 Enrollment Final Report Christine Narrative and Financial 

Dec

1 Hartford Foundation (VBH) Ann. Expenditure Report Donna, Renee Financial Hyperlink is to reporting dates, not agreement

1 Atlantic Philanthropies #22392: ACA Fund Interim Report Jacquie Narrative and Financial

15 MFH: Activities 9/14-11/14 #14-0022-HPC-14 Quarterly Report Reena, Angela Narrative

15 Atlantic Philanthropies/Herndon Final Kathy Narrative and Financial

19 Wellspring Advisors Final  Eva, Donna Narrative and Financial

31 Open Society Foundations - SUD Final Alice Narrative and Financial

31 MFH (Herndon): Activities through 11/14 Final Kathy Narrative

31 RWJF #70882 Business Leaders Final Report Amy, Donna Narrative and Financial Submit to: grantreports@rwjf.org

Date

July

Aug

Sep

2014 Grant Reports & Proposals: Due Dates and Staff Responsible   
Orange = CC Proposal    Red = CCAF Proposal    Blue = Report   Yellow = LOI

Last Updated: 08/28/2014

Jan

Feb

Mar

37

../../FUNDERS - FOUNDATIONS/Packard Fdn, Lucile & David/NEACH Packard/2013-2014/Agreement copy.pdf
../../DEVELOPMENT OFFICE BUSINESS/Copies of Grant Agreements for Hyperlinks/Agreement 70986 (RWJF).pdf
../../FUNDERS - FOUNDATIONS/Pew Charitable Trusts/P - The Prescription Project/2012 Agreement - PACME/CC AG PFA Workplan and Terms Fully Executed.pdf
../../FUNDERS - FOUNDATIONS/Foundation for a Healthy Kentucky/2014/SHP proposal/Agreement/Foundation for a Healthy Kentucky Grant Agreement - signed.pdf
../../FUNDERS - FOUNDATIONS/Consumer Health Foundation/SHP/Agreement/CHF - cover letter agreement.pdf
../../FUNDERS - FOUNDATIONS/California Endowment (The)/ACA Implementation Fund/Grant (2013-2014)/Agreement/20131185_Award_Agreement_from_The_California (1).pdf
../../FUNDERS - FOUNDATIONS/Ford Foundation/In the Loop/2013 Funding/Final/Grant Agreement/Agreement_signed.pdf
../../FUNDERS - FOUNDATIONS/Ford Foundation/In the Loop/2013 Funding
../../DEVELOPMENT OFFICE BUSINESS/Copies of Grant Agreements for Hyperlinks/Signed Grant Agreement 243783.pdf
../../FUNDERS - FOUNDATIONS/RWJF/Community Benefit/GWU Schedule H 2013/Contract/CC Contract.pdf
../../DEVELOPMENT OFFICE BUSINESS/Copies of Grant Agreements for Hyperlinks/Agreement 70986 (RWJF).pdf
../../FUNDERS - FOUNDATIONS/Surdna Fdn/CommBen/2013/Agreement/Surdna FY14Q1 Award Letter - Community Catalyst%5b8%5d.doc
http://www.surdna.org/
../../DEVELOPMENT OFFICE BUSINESS/Copies of Grant Agreements for Hyperlinks/Grant Agreement_08072012.pdf
../../FUNDERS - FOUNDATIONS/Shatterproof/Agreement 2014/GrantSummary_Shatterproof.docx
../../FUNDERS - FOUNDATIONS/Hartford Foundation/Geriatric Provider Collaboration (2013)/Pre-Agreement/Reporting Dates.pdf
../../FUNDERS - FOUNDATIONS/Misssouri Foundation for Health/Technical Assistance (2014)/Missouri Foundation for Health Agreement 14-0022-HPC-14.pdf
../../FUNDERS - FEDERAL/Public Interest Projects/2014 LGBT Proposal/Signed agreement.pdf
../../DEVELOPMENT OFFICE BUSINESS/Copies of Grant Agreements for Hyperlinks/Agreement.pdf
../../FUNDERS - FOUNDATIONS/Herndon/Wyss/Herndon Alliance PS GA 2013 Wyss full grant agreement.pdf
../../DEVELOPMENT OFFICE BUSINESS/Copies of Grant Agreements for Hyperlinks/20130903095053202.pdf
../../FUNDERS - FOUNDATIONS/Open Society Foundations/ACA and Latino Enrollment (2014)/Grant Agreement.pdf
../../FUNDERS - FOUNDATIONS/Pew Charitable Trusts/P - The Prescription Project/2012 Agreement - PACME/CC AG PFA Workplan and Terms Fully Executed.pdf
../../FUNDERS - FOUNDATIONS/Packard Fdn, Lucile & David/NEACH Packard/2013-2014/Agreement copy.pdf
mailto:TViolette@packard.org
../../FUNDERS - FOUNDATIONS/Wyss Fnd (HJW anonymous)/Medicaid/Grant Agreement/Grant agreement - A Medicaid Expansion Campaign to Promote Economic Equality and Opportunity.pdf
../../DEVELOPMENT OFFICE BUSINESS/Copies of Grant Agreements for Hyperlinks/Signed 71426.pdf
../../DEVELOPMENT OFFICE BUSINESS/Copies of Grant Agreements for Hyperlinks/Signed 71426.pdf
../../FUNDERS - FOUNDATIONS/Hartford Foundation/Geriatric Provider Collaboration (2013)/Pre-Agreement/Reporting Dates.pdf
../../FUNDERS - FOUNDATIONS/Atlantic Philanthropies/ACA Implementation Fund/ACA Fund (Jan 1 2014 - Dec 31 2017)/Signed Grant Agreement.pdf
../../FUNDERS - FOUNDATIONS/Misssouri Foundation for Health/Technical Assistance (2014)/Missouri Foundation for Health Agreement 14-0022-HPC-14.pdf
../../FUNDERS - FOUNDATIONS/Herndon/Atlantic Philanthropies/AP Herndon agreement.pdf
../../FUNDERS - FOUNDATIONS/Wellspring Advisors (anonymous)/NEACH/2013/Signed Grant Agreement 2013-2014.pdf
../../FUNDERS - FOUNDATIONS/Open Society Foundations/Substance Abuse (2010-present)/Substance Abuse Grant (Nov 2012-2014)/Agreement_fully executed_Community Catalyst_10312012.pdf
../../FUNDERS - FOUNDATIONS/Herndon/Missouri Foundation for Health/MFH 12-0819-HPC-12 - Signed Agreement Dec 2012 (2).pdf
../../FUNDERS - FOUNDATIONS/RWJF/Business Leaders (2012-2014 )/2013/Agreement/Signed Agreement.pdf
mailto:grantreports@rwjf.org


 
 

Memorandum 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
FROM: Kathy Melley, Communications Director 
DATE: September 9, 2014 
RE: Quarterly Report – Q3 2014 

 
I. Key Communications Accomplishments 
 
Related Strategic Plan Goals: 

 #1: Build a stronger advocacy infrastructure to increase the power and influence of 
consumers in the health system nationwide 

 #5: Invest in Organizational Capacity 
 

1.) Effective message development and penetration 

Fifteen of our state advocate groups used messaging we developed on the Halbig/King 

court cases, which could determine the fate of ACA subsidies for people in federal 

Marketplace states. Advocates were quoted in 34 news outlets and quotes reflected 

messaging we developed. (See more detail on social media results under the Social Media 

section below.)  

 

2.)  Positive reception to the Connecting Consumers to Coverage: Mobilizing for Enrollment 

report  

We worked on the content and design for the Outreach and Enrollment report, which was 

very positively received by the White House, HHS and advocates. It also got a mention in 

POLITICO PULSE and it was one of the topic content pieces on our website. 

 

3.) We welcomed Jessicah Pierre to the team as a Communications Associate.  

Jessicah is responsible for compiling and framing the On Message Daily News Summary and 

supporting the work of the Communications team. She is a graduate of UMASS Amherst, 

and she previously worked at NARAL Pro‐Choice Massachusetts, where she served as the 

Communications and Policy Advocacy Fellow. 

II. Key Communication  Highlights 
 
Media (see press coverage document) 
 

 Wells Wilkinson spoke to the Wall Street Journal about the benefits of generic drugs for 
a story on Novartis’s attempt to stifle generic competition for their brand‐name drug. 

 

38



 
 

 Physician consultant Dr. Stephen Smith was quoted in a Washington Post article about 
physician perspectives on the Physician Payments Sunshine Act.  

 

 Christine Barber was quoted in a Washington Post story on new ACA-enrollee struggles 
with understanding their plan benefits.  

 

 Michael Miller talked to the Washington Post/Kaiser Health News about how hospitals 
are changing charity care policies in light of the ACA. 

 
Press Releases and Statements: 

 We drafted national and state press releases to announce the Substance Use Disorders’ 
team new Screening Brief Intervention and Referral to Treatment (SBRIT) project and 
reached out to national media. This led to an invite for Project Director Alice Dembner 
to blog on the new project for the Health Affairs GrantWatch blog. The blog was also 
published in the hard copy issue of Health Affairs. Reuters is also working on a story 
about the project.  

 

 We issued statements on: the appointment of Sylvia Matthews Burwell as Secretary of 
Health and Human Services; CHIP legislation introduced by Sen. Rockefeller; new 
Marketplace leadership positions at the Department of Health and Human Services; and 
the Supreme Court ruling on Hobby Lobby.  

 
Products 
 
ACAIF Report 

 We worked with design firm Mad*Pow to finalize infographics to illustrate the fund’s 
success thus far. We are working on integrating the infographics with text for a final 
report to be completed in time for the September ACAIF meeting in Philadelphia. 

 
Branding: 

 We have redesigned our letterhead, business cards and other branded materials to 
coincide with the move to One Federal Street.  

 
Project and Issue Team Support 
 
On Message (formerly The Herndon Alliance) 
 
On Message Daily Media Summary: 

 We conducted a reader survey about the daily media summary to assess our effort thus 

far and to generate ideas for any changes. We are still doing some follow up with 

respondents who agreed to be interviewed, but we were pleased with the positive 

feedback and have already made some changes. The clips go out to more than 2,000 

health care opinion leaders.  

39



 
 

 
Leading Washington, DC Convenings: 

 We hosted our fourth DC convening in June with pollster Celinda Lake of Lake Partners 

as our guest speaker presenting on the latest ACA polling results. The convenings 

continue to be well attended by national groups including Georgetown Center for 

Children and Families, Moveon.org, Young Invincibles, United Way, Enroll America, 

Consumers Union, National Women’s Law Center, and the Center for American Progress 

among others.  

  

ACA Positive Narrative and Defense: 

 To respond to the needs to advocates, we provided timely rapid response talking points 
on key implementation events and issues: 

o The Halbig and King court cases, which threaten ACA subsidies 
o A report by the Council of Economic Advisors on the economic benefits of closing 

the coverage gap  
o 2015 premium rates 

 
Research (focus groups and polling): 

 We are partnering with ACS-CAN to conduct focus groups on potential “fixes” to the 
ACA. We know from ACA polling that Americans don’t want the law repealed, they want 
it fixed. After discussions with several leading pollsters and with several partner groups 
at the national level, we see a need and a strategic opportunity to get ahead of the 
discussion on “fixing” the ACA rather than repealing it. Our aim is to have good 
messaging on potential fixes going into the next session of Congress, in which we will 
likely see Republican majorities in the House and Senate and an escalated effort to chip 
away at the law. We will do six focus groups in Cleveland, Houston and Denver. We 
hope to have results in early October.  

 
Medicaid 

 We began work on the Close the Gap campaign and provided communications technical 

assistance to Medicaid expansion campaigns in multiple states: Maine, Pennsylvania, 

Wyoming, Georgia, Florida and Alabama 

Outreach, Education and Enrollment (OEE) 

 We worked with the OEE team to develop a report on the creative and successful 

strategies employed by consumer health advocates and their partners during the first 

open enrollment period.  

 We began production of video featuring outreach and enrollment efforts in three 

southern states: North Carolina, Florida and Alabama. Launch will be at the CVC 

meeting.  

 

40



 
 

 Planning has begun for the launch of Open Enrollment 2, including the development of 

resources for advocates on how best to message renewals, health literacy and the value 

of having health insurance.  

Southern Health Partners and Substance Use Disorders  

 Lucy Dagneau (formerly Lucy Cox-Chapman) presented on Medicaid messaging at both 

the SHP and SUD convenings. 

 

Substance Use Disorders 

 We worked with the SUD team to launch the new SBIRT project. We also helped the 

team develop an SBIRT message platform on national and state press materials to 

announce the new SBIRT grant funding. 

 

Voices for Better Health 

 We completed a third video featuring the benefits Independent Living Long-term 
Services and Supports Coordinators provide to dually eligible adults. It has been very 
well received by the advocacy community, national partners and project funders. 

 
Website  

 *Note: Google Analytics has made a shift in its terminology, and the language in this 

report has changed slightly to reflect Google’s new terms. Our analytics now frequently 

refer to unique visitors as users and visits as sessions. 

Visitors this quarter: 

 CommunityCatalyst.org was visited by 15,760 users this quarter. This increased by more 

than 2,000 visitors from last quarter. We saw significant traffic to two key products: the 

Connecting Consumers to Coverage report and the Meaningful Consumer Engagement 

toolkit were two of the most popular pages of the website. These two products were 

also the result of significant collaboration between the Communications team and 

program staff. Additionally, while employment opportunities remained a popular driver 

of traffic, this quarter we saw more of our publications and foundational Community 

Catalyst resources (like our Mission and Values) begin to drive more traffic on the site.  

Demographics: 

 Our site has visitors from every state in the country. Most sessions* are from 

Massachusetts (7,114/22,531 visits). The other states we receive a significant number of 

visits from are:  

o California: 1,532 sessions 
o Washington DC: 1,410 sessions 
o New York: 1,373 sessions 
o Virginia: 724 sessions 
o Illinois: 623 sessions 

41



 
 

o Pennsylvania: 571 sessions 
o Texas: 570 sessions 
o Maryland: 556 sessions  
o Colorado: 524 sessions 

 
*Note: Demographic stats count sessions versus users (i.e. Massachusetts has a 
disproportionately high number of sessions because our staff is primarily located here and we 
are all heavy users of the site. However, those sessions only count toward one user, helping to 
balance the influence of staff users on other metrics in the analytics). 
 
Content: 
 

Page Unique 

Pageviews 

Bounce 

Rate 

Percent 

Exit 

1. Homepage 7,022 28% 29% 

2. Employment Opportunities 2,369 39% 24% 

3. Staff page 2,003 29% 15% 

4. Meaningful Consumer Engagement Tool 1,251 59% 38% 

5. About Community Catalyst 1,185 36% 25% 

6. Connecting Consumers to Coverage Report 939 83%* 74% 

7. SCHAP Policy Analyst job posting 898 77% 47% 

8. Contact Us 867 70% 57% 

9. Community Catalyst Mission and Values 855 40% 21% 

10. VBH SAM job posting 737 76% 50% 

11. Voices for Better Health Project page 600 46% 27% 

12. Medicaid Report Card Metric: Nurse Practitioners 565 82% 78% 

13. Board of Directors Landing Page 539 18% 13% 

14. SAM job posting 536 82% 73% 

15. Blog Landing Page 512 82.5% 42.4% 

16. SCHAP Program Associate job posting 506 75% 49% 

17. Assistant Director of Development job posting 433 81% 56% 

18. Our Approach 430 43% 20% 

19. Tools Section 407 20% 10% 

20. Our History and Impact 395 54% 19% 

 
Bounce rate: The number of single page visits (i.e. the % of people who left the site from the 
page they entered on). An average bounce rate is between 40% – 70%.  
Exit rate: The number of visits that ended on this page. 

42



 
 

*Note that the bounce rate and exit rate for visitors to the report is inflated by the number of 
people downloading the PDF, which analytics counts as people leaving the site. 
 
Social Media 
 

 During the past quarter we were able to invest more time in cultivating our Social 

Leaders. Christine Lindberg met with Susan Sherry and Michael Miller twice during the 

quarter to answer question and create plans for increased social media use. Christine 

also provides rapid response social media support by identifying tweet opportunities, 

sending draft tweets and providing advice to social leaders on Twitter use. She is 

continuing to work with Michael, Sue, Jacquie and Rob to increase their Twitter use, 

build a follower base and learn more about the platform. Target audiences for the group 

include: journalists, foundation staff, national partners and thought leaders. 

 
Twitter: @HealthPolicyHub 
From June 1 to August 31: 

 Grew a total of 267 followers  

 211 clicks on links we posted 
o On July 2 or number of click-throughs spike with more than 40 clicks on the four 

links we sent out that day. A White House report on the economic benefits of 
closing the coverage gap generated 29 of the clicks. 

o Other popular links this quarter included: 14 clicks on a link to a Kaiser Family 
Foundation infographic on the Coverage Gap in the South; 12 clicks on a dental 
therapist report from Pew Charitable Trusts; 11 clicks on one of the tweets we 
sent about the Closing the Coverage Gap report. 

 We were retweeted 162 times 
o Twitter chats continue to create a spike in retweets. On June 4 we participated in 

a #WellnessWed chat on young adult enrollment and were retweeted 21 times. 
o Our share graphics and rapid response efforts continue to drive traffic and 

retweets. The share graphic we created in response to the Halbig ruling “Keep 
Calm and Know You’re Covered” was retweeted nine times and was even more 
successful on Facebook (see below).  

 
Facebook 
From June 1 to August 31: 

 67 new likes 

 We had several key peaks for the reach of our posts:  
o Our most popular post of the quarter was the share graphic we created in 

response to the Halbig ruling. The message “keep calm and know you’re 
covered” resonated with our audiences and was shared by 38 individuals and 
organizations. The post reached more than 1,600 Facebook users and in total 
was liked 88 times and clicked on 171 times. 

43



 
 

o Our Connecting Consumers to Coverage report also attracted a lot of attention 
on Facebook. It reached 881 people and was shared by five state advocacy 
groups. In total it garnered 31 likes and was 10 shares. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

44



 
 

Community Catalyst 
Strategic Goal and Objective  

For Board Review and Approval  

 

Old Goals #3 & # 4 

Strategic Goal 3: Define Community Catalyst as the next generation advocacy leader by 
influencing health system policies and practices to be sensitive and responsive to consumer 

interests and needs.  
 

1. Identify emerging issues that are ripe for action and investing in effective and innovative 
strategies to address them. 
 

2. Foster development, adoption and dissemination of institutional and public policies that 
represent best practices in areas of concern to consumers  

 

3. Participate in research that evaluates health policies, practices and outcomes of interest to 
consumers. 

4. Complement public policy campaigns with strategies to advance health system quality 
improvement 

5. Utilize our DC presence to promote our issues at the federal level. 

Strategic Goal 3:  Influence health system policies and practices to be sensitive and responsive to 
consumer interests and needs.  

 

1. Incubate and support new delivery models that incorporate patient engagement and 
coordinated care. 

2. Foster development and adoption of institutional policies that represent best practices in areas 
of concern to consumers, e.g., conflict of interest and evidence based practice to reduce the 
impact of pharmaceutical, device and biotech industry marketing on patient care.  

3. Participate in research that evaluates health policies, practices and outcomes of interest to 
consumers. 

4. Support adoption and dissemination of best practices through public policy development 

5. Complement public policy campaigns with legal strategies to advance health system quality 
improvement 

Strategic Goal 4:  Define Community Catalyst as a next generation advocacy leader by identifying 
emerging issues that are ripe for action and investing in effective and innovative strategies to address 

them. 
 

1. Encourage and foster innovation amongst staff and programs to help Community Catalyst 
identify and respond to  emerging issues  

2. Agree on the key issues going forward, the work required to move them, and the level of 
investment/funding. 

3. Explore new and innovative ways of addressing key issues, including consulting and federal grant w

4. Develop a plan to acquire necessary skills. 

5. Develop marketing and/or fundraising strategies for each area of work. 

6. Utilize our DC presence to promote our issues at the federal level. 

45



Implementing the Community Catalyst Strategic Plan 2013-2017 – Amended 8/4/2014 

Strategic Goals/Strategies 

Strategic Goal 1: Build a stronger advocacy infrastructure (resources, skills, relationships) to increase  
the power and influence of consumers in the health system nationwide.   

 

1. Work to grow state-based systems of advocacy; evaluate our effectiveness and impact.     

2. Develop stronger support for state systems of advocacy. 

 Advocate for the importance of consumer involvement in public and private policy-making. 

 Highlight state groups' work and impact via stories and case studies.   

 Identify effective fundraising strategies to deliver resources to state groups and/or assist them in fundraising. 

 Provide more coaching to state partners, especially in leadership development, small business management, communications and fundraising. 

 Provide technical assistance to expand state organization capacities to use websites and social media to present themselves most effectively. 

3. Build stronger relationships among our state and local partners 

 Invigorate our Learning Community and ensure it meets the evolving needs of our partners. 

 Invite leadership team members who work with communities of color into the learning community. 

4. Develop targeted regional and other state grouping strategies that allow us to customize our work and increase its grounding and relevance. 

5. Articulate and further develop our DC role with regard to supporting state systems of advocacy, e.g., use our lobbyists to support states in some tangible 
way. 

Strategic Goal 2:  Assess and develop state and local partners’ capacity for organizing constituencies and campaigns for change.  
 

1. Identify relevant models that can move people to engage and act on social issues and use it to guide our technical assistance.   

2. Develop our capacity to provide technical assistance in grassroots organizing and civic engagement, including coaching models and tracking tools 

3. Train state groups on population shifts and their implications; help them to use the information to make decisions on policy agendas and engagement 
strategies. 

4. Develop approaches and strategies to successfully engage new constituencies who we should target to engage in campaigns and advocacy related to the 
policy agenda and in influencing the environment as a result of demographic shifts (e.g., women, Latinas and seniors). 

5. Provide additional support to state systems of advocacy regarding the design and leadership of campaigns, both issue oriented and civic engagement. 

6. Develop goals for the CCAF, build out our 501(c)4 skills and capacity, and evaluate partnering with state organizations on 501(c)4 campaigns. 

7. Hire or otherwise obtain the skills necessary to provide technical assistance in these new areas. 

8. Evaluate our progress in expanding capacities and measure its impact. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 46



Strategic Goal 3:  Define Community Catalyst as the next generation advocacy leader by influencing health system policies and practices to be 
sensitive and responsive to consumer interests and needs 

 
1. Identify emerging issues that are ripe for action, forecast opportunities that are under the radar, and invest in effective and innovative strategies to address 

them. – confirming change  

2. Foster development, adoption and dissemination of institutional and public policies that represent best practices in areas of concern to consumers  

3. Participate in research that evaluates health policies, practices and outcomes of interest to consumers. 

4. Complement public policy campaigns with strategies to advance health system quality improvement 

5. Utilize our DC presence to promote our issues at the federal level. 

Strategic Goal 4: Diversify our funding sources and develop a flexible pool of resources for investment in key priorities  
 and program development.  

 
1. Develop a business assessment and plan for generating consulting income by hiring a specialist in this area 

2. Identify streams of federal funds which could support our work and monitor the release of those funds, applying for funds directly or with partners 

3. Expand the current individual giving program through dedicated staffing 

4. Continue to cultivate new foundation relationships each year and deepen our existing relationships to secure funding for current and new projects 

5. Set annual budget goals which maintain, but do not significantly increase, Community Catalyst’s unrestricted net assets, repurposing funds that would  
otherwise be surplus into organizational and program investments 

Strategic Goal 5: Invest in Community Catalyst’s staff and organizational capacity to ensure we continue 
to be a high-performing, effective and evolving organization. 

 

1. Continue the hiring and retention efforts started by the Employee Opportunity Committee to strengthen the organization and diversify our staff to reflect 
the populations we partner with across the country. 

2. Develop and mentor staff at every level to be the next generation of  health care leaders and to strengthen future organizational leadership 

 Commit to professional development resources, support learning and leadership opportunities for staff.  

 Develop systems and refine performance reviews to create ongoing dialogue around staff’s individual  professional growth and to recognize 
achievements and development 

 Ensure training, resources, development and commitment to information management systems and technology to help us be more efficient, effective, 
and capture “institutional knowledge.”  

3. Create a stronger administrative infrastructure to support the work of the organization 

 Commitment to advance information systems management across the organization, enhance our ability to access and share information quickly and 
respond effectively and plan for future IT needs.  

 Plan for expiration of office lease in October 2014.  

 Ensure adequate finance staff to meet the changing financial needs of the organization 

 Promote the partnership with HCFA and HLA 

4. Develop stronger administrative support for programs   

47



 

 Develop systems to support the work of program staff 

 Develop a stronger program associate structure  to share knowledge and learning across the organization 

5. Ensure our internal policies match our external guidance and advocacy efforts 

 Infuse the health equity across programs and organizational policies.  

 Commitment to volunteerism 

6. Ensure we are achieving our vision and mission by using evaluation metrics to measure our impact and to shape our future priorities and direction.    

 Increase emphasis on measurable and concrete goals 

 Analyze what works well, what needs to be improved and become intentional about future directions 

7. Create highly effective communications, management and governance and processes that support the organization’s growth and ability to respond to the 
changing environment.   

 Continue to look for ways to improve internal communications and transparency  

 Encourage communications and sharing of information across programs to eliminate silos and support cross-fertilization of ideas 

8. Promote Community Catalyst as a leading national advocacy organization, giving consumers a voice in health care reform  

 Define and build our brand 

 Highlight the impact of our work 

 Strengthen communications, marketing, public relations and development to effectively promote our organization. 

48



 
 

Community Catalyst Strategic Plan 2013-2017     Outcomes/Impacts 

Strategic Goals 

 
Strategic Goal 1: Build a stronger advocacy infrastructure (resources, skills, relationships) to increase  

the power and influence of consumers in the health system nationwide.   
 

State Advocates 

1. State consumer advocates are a stronger and institutionalized voice in shaping health and health system decisions in the next generation of issues. 

2. State consumer advocates have diversified their partnerships and coalitions with stakeholders (communities of color, funders, and other types of organizations such 
as providers) in order to effectively shift to new areas of work and issues. 

3. State consumer advocates have demonstrated the nimbleness and strategic flexibility to make these shifts and to receive financial support for their issue and 
organizing work including the staffing and capacities necessary. 

Community Catalyst 

4. Community Catalyst have modeled new relationships and strategies necessary to address next generation issues by building direct relationships with new and more 
diverse partners in the states (organizations of color, providers, and others). 

5. Community Catalyst have built and adapted its learning community by being nimble enough to adapt to emerging issues and by broadening participation to other 
organizations.  The learning community will have a much stronger component of state-initiated interactions and groupings. 

Community Catalyst/State Partners 

6. Community Catalyst and state partners have together engaged in active discussion and joint planning about how the state consumer health movement should move 
forward on new issues and strategies.  These plans will be carried out in a collaborative/coordinated manner to articulate the strategic direction to funders, 
stakeholders and policymakers. 

7. There is a more collaborative and collective effort among states to elevate models and examples of state work that can inform and help push a federal agenda (with a 
mix of red and blue state issues).   We will also draw on our federal knowledge and cross-state view to identify strategic federal interventions for national campaigns.   

 
Strategic Goal 2:  Assess and develop state and local partners’ capacity for organizing constituencies and campaigns for change.  

 
1. Increased the capacity of state partner organizations to understand and respond to demographic shifts and have supported them to shift their policy agenda and 

engagement strategies accordingly. 

2. Identified approaches and /or strategies to engage new constituencies in advocacy campaigns. 

3. Increased the knowledge of state partners on designing and implementing issue campaigns. 

4. Increased the ability of partners to connect civic engagement and health advocacy organizing. 

5. Increased CC’s ability to design and implement C4 campaigns by developing  and/or deepening CC’s relationship with 501 c4 organizations. 

 
Strategic Goal 3:  Influence health system policies and practices to be sensitive and responsive to consumer interests and needs.  

 

49



 
 

1. Increase in new state and federal rules/regulations, such as require ongoing consumer participation in overseeing delivery system redesign. 
 

2. Policies and practices at institutions such as medical centers policies are effective at reducing conflicts of interest arising from their interactions with drug and device 
companies, or increasing transparency in hospital reporting so that communities can evaluate how hospitals invest in improving community health and access to 
care. 

3. Increased the knowledge of consumer advocates by conducting, translating and publishing systematic analysis of policies important to consumers (availability of low-
cost drugs, adoption of consumer engagement strategies by integrated health plans serving dual eligible). 

4. Increased the influence of  health system policies and practices to be sensitive and responsive to consumer interests and needs by advocating at the federal level in 
DC.            

 
Strategic Goal 4: Diversify our funding sources and develop a flexible pool of resources for investment in key priorities  

 and program development.  
 

1. Business planning assessment completed:  Based on the results and recommendations of assessment, revenue generating plan in place and operational. 

2. Determined the viability of federal funding as part of our overall sustainability plan, and if viable, identified relevant federal funding opportunities and begun to  
secure federal funds. 

3. Determined the viability of individual giving as part of our overall sustainability plan, and if viable, implemented a more formal individual giving program with a  
growing individual donor base and increased giving. 

4. Continuous expanded outreach to national and state-based funders. 

5. Annual increase in solicitations to newly identified national and state-based foundations. 

6. Annual increase in existing foundations giving to greater range of Community Catalyst programs. 

7. Determined the ongoing robustness of foundation dollars and the extent to which we can rely on foundation dollars  
as our core source of support. 

 
Strategic Goal 5: Invest in Community Catalyst’s staff and organizational capacity to ensure we continue 

to be a high-performing, effective and evolving organization. 
 

Finance and Operations 

1. Maintained unrestricted net assets at $1.5M (Assessed figure annually to assure it benchmarked well against annual budget and revised as needed). 

2. Identified areas of program and organizational investment during annual budget process and developed a process for SMT to select and approve organizational 
investment options that emerge from that process. 

3. Advanced information systems management across the organization, enhanced our ability to access and share information quickly and respond effectively. 

4. Planned for expiration of office lease in October 2014. 

5. Reviewed and assessed the partnership with HCFA and HLA. 

Programmatic /Organizational  

50



 
 

  

1. Increased organizational systems to support the work of program staff (administrative services, information management systems). 

2. All programs and services work to advance health equity for our target population and our organization. 

3. All programs are evaluating their programmatic goals, outcomes and impact against our 2017 strategic plan outcomes. 

Communications and Visibility 

6. Developed language and materials (print and digital) that describe our work and how we do it for internal and external use across the organization. 

7. Community Catalyst brand and work is accurately represented and/or conveyed across various channels - new and traditional (our website, emails, blog, social media, 
newsletter, donor pitches, grant proposals, video, news outlets). 

8. Assessed and strengthened CC’s brand and positioning. 

9. Community Catalyst website and marketing materials (one pagers, emails, video, newsletter, grant proposals and reports, donor solicitations, presentations, press 
materials) include current and relevant impact examples. 

10. Invested in new technologies and communications tools to support communications, marketing and development efforts to reach current and new audiences. 

11. Positioned Community Catalyst as a strong resource for communications support for the health advocacy movement. 

 

Human Resources 

1. Diversity is reflected in the values and commitments of Community Catalyst programs and processes as evidenced by SMT and hiring managers’ active responsibility 
for ensuring that their teams reflect the diversity of the populations we partner with and serve. 

2. Mentoring program is fully integrated within the organization and new staff are assigned a mentor during the first three months of their employment. 

3. Performance management system is fully integrated into the culture and norms of the organization with 100% participation by all staff members. 

4. Community Catalyst continues to evolve as a “learning organization” with 75% of staff members using at least 50% of their annual professional development 
resources. 

5. Employment benefits, policies, and practices are competitive and aligned with market standards, and reflect the needs of current staff demographics. 

51



   
 

The Atlantic Philanthropies ꔹ Community Catalyst Site Visit 

 

Overview: Backdrop and Strategy (Used internally. Not shared at site visit.) 
 
The Affordable Care Act (ACA) has created or accelerated the growth of a variety of new regulatory, 
purchasing and health care delivery structures that, if taken together and operating effectively, could 
radically transform the US health care system to promote seamless coverage, improve affordability and 
improve quality.  At the same time, these systems and structures are not without their risks for 
consumers; there are powerful players who are positioning themselves (and in many cases are already 
well-positioned) to take what is intended to be a pro-consumer public policy and co-opt it in the service 
of for-profit, big business gains. Community Catalyst's goal is to institutionalize a strong and influential 
consumer voice in the design and shaping of these new systems/structures. At the heart of our strategy 
is realizing our vision for a new and sustainable (“long-term”) enterprise: the Center for Consumer and 
Community Engagement (the Center). Borne out of The Atlantic Philanthropies-funded, Voices for 
Better Health Program (VBH) at Community Catalyst, and building on Community Catalyst’s unique 
organizational position within the field of consumer advocacy, the Center will take an inventive, multi-
stakeholder approach to redesigning how care is organized, coordinated, and integrated. The goal of the 
Center will be to create and sustain structures and practices for consumer engagement in transforming 
the health system in order to maximize value and make the system responsive to consumer needs.   
 
In our view, true HEALTH SYSTEM TRANSFORMATION will require more than a mandated invitation for 
consumers to be at what could very likely be an uneven table. We see a need for a shift--a paradigm 
shift-- that dictates how care is delivered, who informs the policies that determine how care is delivered, 
and what systems are in place to oversee how care is delivered. Using the opportunities provided by the 
ACA as our frame, we will proceed to integrate (i.e., “institutionalize”) the consumer voice within and 
across public and private health care related sectors (e.g., in hospitals and health systems, with insurers, 
etc.), so that health system transformation has at its core principles of quality and value as well as cost, 
and, even more importantly, the health, dignity and wellbeing of real people who are actively engaged 
in determining how their care is delivered. The Center for Consumer and Community Engagement at 
Community Catalyst will create, support, and incubate consumer engagement policies and practices 
through a broad set of consulting and technical assistance activities to assure a powerful role for the 
consumer voice at the individual level (people determining their own care), at the “systems” level 
(influencing on how health system players approach consumer needs), and at the policy level (shaping 
how local and state governments implement reforms).    
 
For over fifteen years Community Catalyst has been highly regarded for our state-based, multi-sector 
approach to health care consumer advocacy. Over the last several years, Community Catalyst has 
intensified its focus on delivery system reform by providing state and local advocates in over 40 states 
with more information, tools, and policy support. These efforts include applied policy content such as 
our Medicaid Report Card, and efforts to enhance cultural competence, inform federal policymakers and 
communicate a positive vision for a more effective health system for vulnerable populations. 
Additionally, since October 2013, Community Catalyst has been actively engaged with state consumer 
health leaders from around the country in a structured dialogue about the next generation of consumer 
health advocacy. All agree that health system transformation will be at the root of the movement. 
 

 

52



   
 

SITE VISIT AGENDA 
 

AP Team: Chris Oechsli (CEO), Steve McConnell (Head of US Programs), Sara Kay (Program Officer) 

 
THURSDAY, JULY 24 
 
Welcome / Overview 
Rob Restuccia, Kate Villers, Sue Sherry, Michael Miller, Renee Marcus-Hodin, and Diane Felicio 
 

 Our roots, mission, and historical overview (policy, advocacy, TA, etc.) 

 Our longstanding relationship with Atlantic Philanthropies: Brief overview: CBC, VBH, 
ACAIF  

 The Environment and Landscape Now: Political and Policy  

 The future: Brief overview -- Health System Transformation: The Center for Consumer 
and Community Engagement  

 
The opening session went very well. We followed the outline above. Steve and Sara were already 
familiar with Community Catalyst’s history, but Chris was not. He seemed keen on getting us to capture 
it in some way. He is interested in “playbooks” (i.e., documenting approaches that can be used/revised) 
over the long term. We talked about our approach to TA, policy, etc. in this way. The discussion about 
the political/policy environment was good (Michael gave the update). It became clear early on that 
Chris, although not a health care policy expert, understood the issues, especially as they relate to equity. 
 
The Changing Health Care Marketplace  
Rob Restuccia, Sue Sherry, John O’Brien, Andrew Dreyfus, Diane Felicio 
 
Hospitals and health plans are moving forward in the new health care marketplace. Most are focused in 
large part on costs/revenue with little consideration for quality and the genuine, meaningful input 
consumers bring to the table. Consumer advocates want to move the needle so that hospitals and plans 
include the consumer voice in every aspect of the healthcare system. In this session, John O’Brien, 
former CEO of UMass Memorial Health Care and Andrew Dreyfus, President of Blue Cross Blue Shield of 
Massachusetts (and former president of the BC/BSMA Foundation) will join us to talk about the 
changing healthcare marketplace, the implications for providers and plans, the important and 
meaningful perspectives that consumers bring to the table, the role providers and plans can play in 
supporting consumers as they advocate for change, and the role of Community Catalyst in assuring that 
consumers are prepared to work effectively with hospitals and plans and that hospitals and plans know 
how to best engage the people they are there to serve. 
 
Andrew and John talked about the changing healthcare marketplace and consumer engagement from 
their respective positions. Andrew noted that, “We are still in the childhood phase of the patient 
engagement movement.” They both did a good job of making the “national” case for consumer 
engagement and made it clear that the MA story does not limit what was accomplished here to MA. 
They are both very knowledgeable about efforts around the country and the AP team showed great 
interest in trends and challenges. Chris clearly understood that dynamics in one part of the country will 
be different in others, but that the business case for consumer engagement stands. 
 
 

53



   
 

Health System Transformation: Community Catalyst’s Voices for Better Health Program and the 
Commonwealth Care Alliance (CCA, 12th Floor) 
Bob Master, Rosa Palacios (AP Fellow), Sue Kaufman (Vivily), Rob Restuccia, Renee Marcus-Hodin, Diane 
Felicio 
 
In 2001, Community Catalyst hosted Soros Fellow Bob Master, M.D., a pioneer in the development of 
“integrated” delivery systems that serve individuals with significant medical and behavioral health 
needs. During his time at Community Catalyst, Dr. Master developed the Commonwealth Care Alliance 
(CCA), a non-profit health delivery system serving dually eligible (those eligible for Medicaid and 
Medicare) older adults and people with complex physical disabilities. CCA’s pioneering approach relies 
on an integrated team of nurse practitioners, nurses, behavioral health professionals, social services 
providers, and other professionals to support primary care clinicians. Since 2003, CCA has been 
nationally recognized for its highly individualized, compassionate healthcare programs. Along with its 
dedicated focus to quality care, CCA’s programs also address issues of cost by creating savings from 
reduced hospitalizations and institutional care. CCA helped Massachusetts to become the first state in 
the nation to fulfill the promise of effective healthcare reform, a goal that is now enshrined through the 
Affordable Care Act. CCA’s next venture, Vivily, is a for-profit consulting, technology, and clinically 
oriented, patient centered management service for dual eligibles whereby CCA’s mission and model will 
be sold to provider groups, accountable care organizations, insurance plans, and others. Community 
Catalyst is in the very early stages of considering a potential equity stake in Vivily, which is an example of 
the type of opportunities now available for mission-driven advocates and providers to leverage their 
expertise in the changing health care marketplace to generate revenues that support their program 
work. 
 
The Atlantic Philanthropies funded Voices for Better Health (VBH) program carries on the integrated 
delivery system work that helped launch CCA. Quality, cost-effective, patient-centered care is possible, 
but not without the ongoing and meaningful involvement of vulnerable older adults and the 
organizations that represent them. Through VBH, Community Catalyst is advancing policies that require 
coordinated, patient-centered care and establishing a strong voice for dually eligible older adults and 
caregivers in the health plans and provider groups that serve them. CCA is one of our many partners in 
this work.  
 
Bob Master’s overview of CCA (and the associated Q&A) took up a good portion of this session. Renee 
Marcus-Hodin and Sue Kauffman were also able to contribute to the conversation: Renee about VBH 
and Sue about Vivily. We did not spend a great deal of time on the latter, but did refer to the handout in 
the Materials Packet (sent previously to the Board) that showed the interrelationships among 
Community Catalyst (the Center for Consumer and Community Engagement), CCA, Vivily, and Vital 
Capital. Bob alluded to some of the fiscal challenges that CCA has experienced, but presented an 
optimistic outlook about the future.  Rosa Palacios (CCA) gave a brief overview of the Upham’s Corner 
Community Health Center visit coming up the following day. Chris appeared to be impressed by the 
model, asked questions about cost/quality and how the integrated care approach actually works. 
 
Elevating the Consumer Voice in the new Health Care Marketplace: The Center for Consumer and 
Community Engagement 
Rob Restuccia, Jacquie Anderson, Sue Sherry, Renee Marcus Hodin, Cathy Levine, and Diane Felicio 
 
In this session we will be joined by a consumer advocate from Ohio, Cathy Levine. Cathy will talk about 
her experiences as a consumer advocate pre/post implementation of the ACA, the challenges she sees 

54



   
 

consumers facing in the new marketplace, what would help advocates overcome those challenges, and 
the impact of Community Catalyst’s support (e.g., through direct technical assistance, the ACA 
Implementation Fund, and advocacy in Washington, DC). Community Catalyst will speak to the many 
opportunities that the new heath care marketplace offers for integrating the consumer voice, what it 
will take to assure that consumers are well prepared, and the options to sustain the consumer advocacy 
movement over the long term. 
 
A bulk of this session was devoted to Cathy Levine (ED, UHCAN Ohio) and her work in Ohio and the 
purpose and value of Community Catalyst’s support. The AP team asked some pointed questions about 
how we work together, what Cathy looks to Community Catalyst for, and what about our support is 
most helpful to her. She did not sugarcoat – she was clear about her challenges (political and policy) and 
talked about how much/often she counts on Community Catalyst for our “in-the-moment” access, as 
well as the availability of the larger learning community that we manage.  Chris left with the impression 
that we must “have our hands full” with energetic (i.e., demanding/motivated/dynamic) advocates like 
Cathy. 
 
Dinner: Kate, Rob, Diane, Michael, Wendy + AP team 
 
Dinner was social and personal in a "getting to know you" kind of way.  Wendy helped make the case 
that the transformation is coming--that Children's has bought into it--and also emphasized that it is 
difficult.  Chris raised the DC presence question himself--not DC office per se, but was there a need for 
us to be more present/ visible there.  Rob and Michael talked about how it would be helpful to be able 
to build relationships and easier to insert ourselves.  We also discussed some of the big picture politics. 
Chris was very interested in and appreciated the “human rights” values underpinning our work and the 
steadfastness of Community Catalyst’s mission of constituency empowerment to leverage policy change 
– its continuity over time, from its roots in the 80’s (Villers Foundation) to the present.   
 
End of Day 1 Reflections from Sara Kay 
 

 He is very impressed. We made the case for our value.  

 Love the notion of the pivot in the marketplace and CC making the pivot. 

 We clearly demonstrated that we working on health equity and consistent with the mission. 

 There will be a $5M match requirement so we need to have a $15M proposal. 

 She said we really need to take the long view. 

 The key is to be big bold and aspirational.  

 Chris is very interested in the human capital issues and leadership development. 

 We need to make the case for the longer run – we need this $15M to position ourselves for the 
future – making delivery system change and strengthening the organization overall. 

 
FRIDAY, JULY 25 
 
Site Visit, Community Center at Upham’s Corner  
Bob Master, Rosa Palacios (Atlantic Philanthropies Fellow), Rob Restuccia, Renee Marcus Hodin, Diane 
Felicio 
 
Consumer participation and involvement are critical to Commonwealth Care Alliance model of care and 
organizational identity. The purpose of running local member meetings is to give members the 
opportunity to voice their opinions about the services they receive and to provide a platform where they 

55



   
 

can provide feedback, ideas, suggestion and recommendations to improve the Senior Care Options 
program. It all gives Commonwealth Care Alliance staff the opportunity to provide updates and 
information. There are 10-12 meetings in all per year – at least one in each of the eight primary 
languages members speak. We are expecting between 20-30 members at the meeting at Upham’s 
Corner. Some members will come with a family member or personal care attendant. 
 
We were at the Center for about three hours. The AP team took a quick tour and then attended a 
session with consumers (attendees were from the Cape Verde community and there was a translator 
present). CCA staff conducted the session, asked for feedback about various elements of the program, 
and provided information, as well (e.g., about new insurance cards). There was also a 100th birthday 
celebration for one of the members. The AP team got to witness the “community” element that the CCA 
program provides (along with coordinated care).Chris said the meeting was inspiring. He spoke with 
Rosa Palacios afterwards and asked questions about how they handle the feedback they receive.  
 
The Center for Consumer and Community Engagement 
Rob Restuccia, Jacquie Anderson, Sue Sherry, Renee Marcus Hodin, Carol Regan, Steve Pratt [Root Cause 
consultant], and Diane Felicio 
 
In this closing session we will discuss the present and future opportunities and challenges confronting 
Community Catalyst and its partners in health system transformation.  We will learn about Community 
Catalysts’ plans to deepen capacity – both within its own structure and among its partners – and 
develop the skills and new tools needed to be effective in this dynamic new environment.   
 

 The purpose and scope of the Center for Consumer and Community Engagement: Next-
gen TA, DC office, C-suite, long-term scenario planning, fundraising capacity, fee-for-
service, etc. 

 Overview of business planning process  
 Overview of other opportunities for sustainability: Federal/state grants, Vivily, etc.  

 

 Chris: How AP defines success: Sustainability, mission, tipping point organization  

 Steve Pratt (Root Cause): Steve did an excellent job of talking about the business planning 
process thus far and responded well to if/then scenario questions (e.g., alternatives to the 
target groups that might be interested in fee-for-service if health plans are not, the importance 
of timing, and our readiness). There was a lot of head-nodding during this conversation and 
Steve, Chris, and Sara seemed to appreciate Steve Pratt’s perspective/approach. 

 AP:  What would elevate the game? 
o Steve McConnell – Would you do this (the Center/Business Planning, etc.) anyway?  

 Rob:  Why Community Catalyst? 
o Rob spoke at length and powerfully about our history, impact, content area expertise, 

strong partnerships (e.g., C-Suite), and how CC has been a key source of resource 
development for the network. 

 Chris: Would you/CC consider regional staff (CC- CA, South); expand video conferencing 
capacity? 

 Chris:  what about global health issues?  Workforce issues, community based care? 

56



Components of the Center—Including projected cost/revenue elements. Contents discussed, but handout not distributed at site visit. 
 

   
 

 

57



1 
 

 

A Closer Look at Atlantic's End Game—And Where It's Putting the Biggest Money 

David Callahan 

Atlantic Philanthropies is going out with a bang, not a whimper, and it's pretty darn interesting to 
watch—far more interesting than you think.  

Why? Because the story of Atlantic's end game is not about a multi-billion-dollar foundation that is 
spending down its assets on a methodical schedule set in stone years ago. Instead, this is more like a 
fireworks display, and we're only now witnessing the finale—one that's being invented on the fly, no 
less. 

If you're not paying attention, you're missing the best part.  

Atlantic is starting to make a series of "culminating grants" that will shower a handful of organizations 
with big money, the kind that rarely comes from foundations. What's more, these funds aren't being 
shoveled out in rote exit grants so Atlantic can meet its deadline of emptying its endowment by 2016. 
Rather, the foundation has been thinking new thoughts and setting new goals as part of its last phase. 

Fewer and Bigger Bets 

In an interview last week, Atlantic CEO Christopher G. Oechsli made it clear to me that even now, with 
the end looming, Atlantic is still considering fresh gambits and debating where to direct the largest 
grants.  

Oechsli knows how to create suspense. Back in April, Atlantic blasted out atantalizing message from 
Oechsli saying that big things were coming—that the foundation would make "fewer and bigger" bets as 
it wound down. But he wouldn't say on what. 

"Stay tuned," Oechsli wrote. "The symphony is building and there are key movements to come." 

A few weeks ago, the picture became clearer when the foundationannounced that it was making three 
mega grants: one to foster peace and human rights in Northern Ireland, another to help fund a national 
dementia strategy in Ireland, and a third to expand the Center for Budget and Policy Priorities, the 
Washington-based liberal think tank. (See my take on the CBPP grant.) 

The foundation also revealed more about its end-game strategy, including its intention to invest in a 
small number of what Oechsli calls "champion organizations" like CBPP that can carry forward Atlantic's 
goals over the long term. 

"Transformative, Systemic Change" 

I spoke with Oechsli to learn more about the deeper thinking behind Atlantic's strategy, along with 
where big money is going next.  

58

http://www.insidephilanthropy.com/home/2014/8/20/a-closer-look-at-atlantics-end-gameand-where-its-putting-the.html
http://www.insidephilanthropy.com/home/author/insidephilanthropy
http://insidephilanthropy.squarespace.com/home/2014/4/29/something-big-is-coming-from-atlantic-philanthropies-but-wha.html
http://www.atlanticphilanthropies.org/news/atlantic%E2%80%99s-culminating-grants-cultivating-change-ceo-update?utm_source=Atlantic+Currents+Newsletter&utm_campaign=5cb0ad681a-July_2014_CEO_Letter&utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_67cd707daf-5cb0ad681a-86702088
http://www.insidephilanthropy.com/home/2014/7/30/will-atlantics-big-bet-on-the-center-for-budget-and-policy-p.html
http://www.insidephilanthropy.com/home/2014/7/30/will-atlantics-big-bet-on-the-center-for-budget-and-policy-p.html
http://www.insidephilanthropy.com/
http://www.insidephilanthropy.com/home/author/insidephilanthropy


2 
 

The first thing to understand is that Atlantic sees this culminating phase as distinct from its longstanding 
program funding. "We're moving beyond that approach to grantmaking," Oechsli says. In plotting its 
final moves, the foundation decided to "pull back and look at the bigger picture."  

At the end of 2012, the foundation created a pot of money for a new phase of work it would call Global 
Opportunity and Leverage, or GOAL, and further refined its thinking through 2013. Tony Proscio, a Duke 
scholar who's been writing about the foundation, has said of GOAL that it's "meant not to be solely a 
final burst of activity, but a new way of thinking about the Foundation's ultimate purpose and how it 
would conclude." 

Atlantic's aim is to build on its previous grantmaking with the hope of "catalyzing transformative, 
systemic change" in the fields and countries where it has worked.  

Good luck getting over that bar, you might say. On the other hand, this is foundation that still has 
hundreds of millions of dollars to move out the door. 

Investing in champion organizations is one track. Investing in human capital is another approach that 
Oechsli says will guide Atlantic's final grantmaking, with a focus on "developing future leaders who are 
grappling with multidisciplinary challenges and networked approaches." Long after the foundation goes 
out of business, Oechsli says, those leaders can still be advancing its values.  

The Core Focus: Equity 

And what, exactly, are Atlantic's values? Oechsli acknowledges that Atlantic's mission has been 
interpreted in different ways over time (and with some fuss, we might add), but the enduring core, 
especially in this final phase, is a focus on equity. 

“The basic value is the need to enhance opportunity for people who have unfairly been denied that 
opportunity," Oechsli says.  

(A quick aside: After my recent deep dive into Hewlett, it's refreshing to hear a foundation president 
state an overarching normative goal clearly and without equivocation. And no, it's not because I share 
that goal. I alsoadmire funders on the right who are crystal clear about the societal change they seek.)  

As for the means to advance that goal, Oechsli argues that it's important to focus on both "hearts and 
minds." The foundation places great stock in evidence-based policy, but also wants to back work that 
connects with people at the gut level through story telling.  

Whatever the approach, "government is a primary audience," says Oechsli, since it has such huge 
resources and systems in place. In making its big give for dementia work in Ireland, Atlantic is partnering 
directly with that country's national healtcare system.  

The major grant to CBPP certainly makes sense in the context of Atlantic's thinking: It's an outfit that's 
hyper-focused on shaping government policy with evidence-based policy analysis on behalf of 
Americans who've historically been screwed.  

Shaping the Narrative 

Atlantic will be announcing more big grants this year, including to additional "champion organizations." 
This is nice money if you can get it, with Oechsli saying that most of those grants will range from $10 to 
$20 million.  

59

http://www.atlanticphilanthropies.org/sites/default/files/uploads/Atlantic-Philanthropies-Harvest-Time-2012-2013.pdf
http://www.insidephilanthropy.com/home/2014/7/14/why-wont-foundations-like-hewlett-just-stand-up-and-fight-fo.html
http://www.insidephilanthropy.com/home/2014/7/10/americas-top-conservative-funder-died-last-week-what-does-th.html


3 
 

So who's going to pull in the big money? Atlantic is figuring that out right now.  

"There are more champions than we can possibly support," Oechsli sighs.“But we’re trying really hard to 
identify those institutions that can make a lasting impact, reflecting the issues we’ve been involved with 
and the issues underlying our work.” 

One area where Oechsli says that Atlantic will make a significant investment is in shaping "the narrative" 
around issues of equity. This goes to the foundation's desire to influence people's "hearts," as well as 
their "minds." 

The grant to the wonky Center for Budget, with its endless stream of sober policy briefs, was all about 
the "minds," but Oechsli says that Atlantic is also interested in "retelling the story about what's unfair 
and biased." 

In another indication that Atlantic's end game is a work in progress, Oechsli said that the foundation was 
still grappling with how to fund narrative work and was looking at multiple approaches.   

Race Looms Large 

Atlantic has been closely involved in My Brother's Keeper, the big initiative on race launched by the 
White House in February, and Oechsli says that the idea of funding around narrative came from listening 
to President Obama talk about how boys and young men of color are seen in American society.  

So it wouldn't be surprising if Atlantic did something big to shape how Americans talk about race and 
equity when it starts writing big checks for storytelling. 

In fact, the foundation is already involved in narrative work on race, as part of My Brother's Keeper, 
through a collaborative effort with the W.K. Kellogg Foundation, the California Endowment, Ford, 
Knight, and the Open Society Foundations. This push engages the media, research, and young people of 
color themselves.  

And long before My Brother's Keeper began, the foundation invested millions of dollars to challenge 
Draconian school discipline policies, backing grantees that have highlighted the racially biased ways that 
such policies reinforce a "school-to-prison pipeline. 

That work has had enormous traction, with policy change happening at the federal, state, and local 
levels—all against the broader backdrop of a rethinking of drug laws and the over-incarceration of 
young people of color. 

Going back further, Atlantic has invested over $100 million in a network of schools and school-based 
health centers to improve opportunities for low-income middle school kids of color. Also, when Gara 
LeMarche led Atlantic, the foundation devoted considerable thought to how structural racism played 
out in its main program areas, including ageing, both in the United State and some of the other 
countries where it operated. LeMarche gave an important speech on race and philanthropy in 2008 that 
remains compelling reading six years later.  

The question now is how Atlantic is going to pull together its linked interests in equity, race, and 
narrative through major culminating grants. I imagine there's more than a few NGOs—would-be 
"champion organizations"—that are keeping their fingers crossed in a big way.  

 

60

http://www.atlanticphilanthropies.org/learning/speech-taking-account-race-philanthropic-imperative


4 
 

Healthcare and Education 

Health is another area where Atlantic has a stake, given the many millions it has spent not just to help 
enact the Affordable Care Act but also to implement the law. Oechsli says that the foundation thinks in 
terms of "health equity" and, in the wake of the successful fight over coverage, has shifted its attention 
to challenges around healthcare delivery and cost.  

One keen interest of the foundation is building a cadre of healthcare professionals who are drawn from 
the community, and it's learned a lot about this area from its funding of school-based health clinics. 
Here again, the foundation is poised to make some major grants. Oechsli says the foundation will give 
big money to at least one champion organization in the healthcare field, and that significant funding for 
human capital is also likely.  

Likewise, Atlantic is zeroing in on a big give in the education sector that Oechsli says will be considered 
by Atlantic's board in September.  

"It's Not an Easy Job" 

You might think that shoveling out piles of money to advance longstanding passions would be great fun. 
But Oechsli says that it's much harder than it looks and that "it's complicated and stressful." 

Among other things, it's hard to say no to groups. "To do this well is not an easy job," says Oechsli, 
although he also describes the process as "very satisfying."  

And what's Atlantic's CEO going to do when this is all over?  

Oechsli says he hasn't given that much thought amid the intense pressures of closing up shop. But 
whatever he does, it's hard to imagine that it could be nearly as interesting as managing the biggest 
philanthropic spend down in history. 

David Callahan is founder and editor of Inside Philanthropy. He can be reached at 
davidc@insidephilanthropy.com 

Wednesday, August 20, 2014 at 03:58PM 

 

 

61

http://www.insidephilanthropy.com/rate-funders/


 

Will Atlantic's Big Bet on the Center for Budget and Policy Priorities Pay Off?  

David Callahan  

No think tank commands more respect among liberal policy wonks and Capitol Hill Democrats than the 

D.C-based Center for Budget and Policy Priorities, founded over 30 years ago by the indefatigable Robert 

Greenstein. The center is revered for its analytical rigor, its rapid response time, and its sheer 

relentlessness. The place is like a machine: Any time a proposal appears that whacks the poor, you can 

use a stopwatch to clock how it long it takes the center to whip out a scathing critique, often written by 

Greenstein himself. Does the guy sleep?  

Yet CBPP has always had a major weakness: It's never been so great at generating new policy ideas or 

reframing debates over the long term. It's been more a finger-in-the-dike operation than an effort to 

redirect the river, even as places like Heritage and Cato focused on doing just that. In this way, CBPP has 

mirrored the broader struggle of liberalism in recent decades to move past a defense of New Deal/Great 

Society programs to develop fresh approaches to improving life prospects for low-income Americans.  

Now, thanks to a big gift from Atlantic Philanthropies, the center will shift more to offense, with a new 

institute that will focus on proactive policy development. In the video below, Greenstein says this new 

arm of CBPP "is going to look at the longer term," and will complement the fire-fighting work that the 

center does every day.  

Greenstein says the institute will seek to deal with the major fiscal challenges ahead, driven by rising 

entitlement and healthcare costs as the boomers retire, in a way that actually reduces poverty, as 

opposed to just dodging the most Draconian of cuts.  

Atlantic isn't saying exactly how much money it's giving to CBPP, which Atlantic has backed over many 

years, but it's surely a big number. Remember, this is a foundation that needs to move hundreds of 

millions of dollars out the door by 2016. 

Stephen McConnell, who directs U.S. Programmes for Atlantic, explains that the mega gift to CBPP is 

part of a broader strategy by Atlantic, which is spending down, to invest heavily in a few "champion 

organizations" that "have the capacity to not only fight today's battles, but to be strong and fight those 

battles in the future." 

Atlantic's strategy of doubling down on leading organizations makes a lot of sense, and scale matters in 

shaping public policy. The Heritage Foundation can play both the near-term and long-term game 

because its budget is three times as large as the Center for Budget and Policy Priorities. Heritage can 

deploy legions of wonks to analyze breaking policy proposals and still have resources left over to pay 

senior fellows who write books and think long term.  

62

http://www.insidephilanthropy.com/home/2014/7/30/will-atlantics-big-bet-on-the-center-for-budget-and-policy-p.html
http://www.insidephilanthropy.com/home/author/insidephilanthropy
http://www.atlanticphilanthropies.org/news/atlantic%E2%80%99s-culminating-grants-cultivating-change-ceo-update?utm_source=Atlantic+Currents+Newsletter&utm_campaign=5cb0ad681a-July_2014_CEO_Letter&utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_67cd707daf-5cb0ad681a-86702088
http://www.insidephilanthropy.com/
http://www.insidephilanthropy.com/home/author/insidephilanthropy


That said, is Atlantic placing the right bet in investing big in CBPP?  

[Here, I should pause for the disclaimer that I co-founded and previously worked at Demos, another 

national policy shop.] 

I can see both the pros and cons of betting heavily on CBPP.  

The center looks like the right vehicle for shaping long-term debates if you believe that fiscal choices will 

be all-important in determining living standards for many Americans in coming decades. At stake in 

looming budget battles is not just the survival of safety net programs, but the ability of government to 

address common problems at all.  

That's because spending on entitlement programs for seniors and interest on the debt threatens to 

crowd out spending on most everything else that government does a few decades from now, unless 

revenues substantially increase and/or projected public healthcare spending is sharply reduced. The 

squeeze is already on, with domestic discretionary outlays on a steady downward slope.  

If you want to win the brutal multi-decade fiscal war that lies ahead, you can see the appeal of scaling 

up the left's premier budget outfit.  

The argument for investing elsewhere is that the fiscal and economic choices by policymakers are 

merely a reflection of who has power in American society and what values ordinary people embrace. If 

U.S. politics remains dominated by corporations and the affluent, and if a great many Americans 

embrace libertarian ideas about the economy and safety net, than all the wonks in the world won't turn 

things around.  

Conservative philanthropy has been so been successful since the 1970s because the right's funders have 

focused huge resources on shaping meta debates over values and the economy. They've pushed moral 

arguments about individual responsibility and bashed social programs as harmful while teaming up with 

business and the wealthy to promote laissez-faire ideas about the economy and regulation. Separately, 

a powerful message machine emerged on the right with the muscle to shape public opinion on a large 

scale. And of course, vast amounts of new money poured into our democracy, tilting policy outcomes 

toward the 1 percent.  

In the face of this juggernaut, many liberal funders remained steadfast in their faith that reason and 

analysis would prevail, and the Center for Budget and Policy Priorities has long been a magnet for 

foundation dollars as the gold standard in this department.  

But to me, the lesson of recent decades is that equity-minded funders need to invest much more heavily 

in institutions that are thinking at a deep level about both the economy and values, and can connect this 

work to movement building. The center isn't a leader in these areas and it's hard to see it becoming one 

(even if it did hire Jared Bernstein a few years back, who's great on the big picture stuff). 

So what the bottom line in all this? Ultimately it's not clear there's an either/or choice here in terms of 

where to invest, and Atlantic can't really go wrong in giving CBPP a big pile of money. 

63



Even in an America far more receptive to the ideas of collective obligation and a mixed economy, the 

coming budget battles will be brutal as the boomers retire and interest soars on the debt. An expanded 

CBPP with more capacity to think a few moves ahead can only be a good thing.  

And let's not forget something else: Atlantic is still not done choosing the "champion organizations" that 

it plans to shower with "culminating grants" as it moves toward closing its doors. 

I'll be writing more about Atlantic's end game strategy in coming weeks and months.   

 

64



1 

© 2014 by Root Cause 

Community Catalyst 
Center for Consumer and Community Engagement (CCCE) 

WORKING GROUP #2 

August 21, 2014 
© 2014 by Root Cause 

Today’s Goals and Agenda 

Goals:  

► Understand and discuss the research findings to date 

► Identify next steps for research and deliverable  

 

Agenda:  

► Process Review and Update  

► Internal and External Review Findings  

► Path Forward  

© 2014 by Root Cause 

PROCESS REVIEW AND UPDATE 

© 2014 by Root Cause 

Center for Consumer and Community 
Engagement Business Planning Process 

MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT 

PHASE 1: INTERNAL REVIEW 
• Community Catalyst Overview 
• Internal Stakeholder Review  

PHASE 2: EXTERNAL REVIEW 
• Interview key informants and potential 

customers 
• Research financial options  

PHASE 3: FRAME PLAN 
• Prepare multiple plan scenarios including 

program models and budget frameworks  

PHASE 4: DRAFT PLAN  
• Present summary of plan  
• Present funder prospectus and roadshow  

PHASE 5: FINALIZE PLAN AND DELIVERABLES 
• Review/finalize plan 
• Update all stakeholders 
• Ongoing implementation coaching  

         Working Group 
 Meeting 

Present Plan to Board 

Jun 2 

Aug 21 

Sep 29  

© 2014 by Root Cause 

Reminder: Center for Consumer and Community 
Engagement (CCCE) Business Planning Process Goals 

Overarching goal: Explore and develop sustainability options 
for CCCE that include diverse sources of revenue  

 

► Root Cause’s work to date has focused on the feasibility of 
developing a fee-for-service revenue stream for CCCE focused 
on training and technical assistance for those who have 
strategic and/or compliance reasons to focus on consumer 
engagement 

 

© 2014 by Root Cause 

INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL REVIEW 

65



2 

© 2014 by Root Cause 

Internal Interviews  

Conversations with six Community Catalyst staff and two board members  

► What could CCCE products and 
services look like? 

► What lessons have been learned 
from previous examples of 
providing TA and/or other fee-for-
service work?   

 

► What are: 

• The things that you have? 

• The things that you do? 

• The things that you know? 

► Who would want those things? 

► What could be monetized  

• Directly? 

• Indirectly thru proxy payers? 

 

Topics Included:  

© 2013 by Root Cause 

Findings: CC Assets for CCCE Fee-for-Service Work 

► Expertise: Deep technical and content knowledge of policy and 
practice of community planning and consumer engagement 

 

► Strong relationships and networks, including relationships with 
consumer advocates at the state level across the country 

 

► Bridge-building history among diverse stakeholders 

 

► Brand and reputation that are well-respected 

 

© 2013 by Root Cause 

Findings: CC Challenges for CCCE Fee-for-Service Work 

► Lack of business skillsets: No in-house experience or culture with fee-for-service 
client services including scoping, execution, marketing, billing and customer- or 
revenue-driven mentality 

 

► No ‘fully-cooked’ turn-key offerings; any products would have to be developed 
from existing assets on an ongoing basis, which can be risky, costly, and harder to 
sell 

 

► Limited in-house experience with health plan administration, essential when 
providing TA to health plans 

 

► Differing and evolving internal visions for the Center 

 

► Risk of having clients with conflicts with advocacy work 

© 2014 by Root Cause 

External Review Key Questions 

Method  

External Review 
Research:  

Market Landscape 
and Interviews 

External Review 
Research: 

Benchmarking 

Question 

Are there opportunities for consumer engagement fee-for-
service work?  
 
If so, how are these opportunities developing due to the 
changing healthcare landscape? 

Who would demand these services?  

Who else is already meeting those needs and can CC position 
itself in a discrete area of the market where it would have a 
competitive advantage?   

© 2013 by Root Cause 

External Interviews: Potential Customers  
Conversations with six potential customers, six pending  

► When you have technical assistance needs, how do you usually address those (in-house vs. external)?   

► Have the changes associated with the ACA altered when and how you use outside TA services? 

► For those technical assistance needs that you address externally, what services or partners have been 

most helpful?  What has worked well?  What challenges did you encounter? 

► How have you approached consumer engagement up to this point?  Does that affect your TA needs?  

► Possibility of seeking TA on specific aspects of consumer engagement strategy 

Topics Included:  

Interviewee Title & Organization  

Mary Kennedy Vice President for Medicare and Managed Long-Term Care, ACAP 

Bob Thompson  Vice President of Community Health Engagement, Excellus BlueCross BlueShield 

Bob Crittenden  Senior Policy Advisor, Health Reform, State of Washington  

Chris DeMars Director of Systems Innovation, Oregon Health Authority Transformation Center  

Lorez Meinhold Senior Associate, The Keystone Center  

Judy A. Farrell & 
Portia McCormack 

Vice President and Assistant Vice President, Government Affairs, GuildNet 

© 2013 by Root Cause 

External Interviews: Allies/Thought Leaders  

Conversations with five thought leaders/allies in the field, two pending  

► What does the need look like for technical assistance for community engagement for health plans?   
► Who are the decision-makers/payers within health plans that we should consult?   
► Perception of CC expertise areas and match with unmet need  
► View on detailed list of CCCE products/services – which might be most useful?  
► What are the risks associated with working with health plans on these issues?  How might they be 

mitigated? 

Topics Included:  

Interviewee Title & Organization  

Cindy Ehnes Executive Vice President of Consulting, COPE Health Solutions  

Tom Lynch Founder, Lynch Ryan; CCA Board Member 

Andy Stern 
Senior Fellow, Columbia University Richman Center 
Advisory Board Member, Open Society Foundations U.S. Programs 
Former President, Service Employees International Union (SEIU) 

Bill Walczak Former CEO, Codman Square Health Center  

Jan VanRiper National Alliance of State Health Co-ops  

66



3 

© 2014 by Root Cause 

Organization Annual 
Revenue 

Description from Website 

American 
Institutes for 
Research (AIR) 

$279M (2011) 
(Health 
program=~$27
M) 

One of the world's largest behavioral and social science research 
organizations. AIR conducts and applies health policy research to 
develop improved healthcare services, systems, and structures that 
improve health and affordability of care.  

Institute for 
Healthcare 
Improvement (IHI) 

$43M (2011) Built around the belief that everyone should get the best health and 
care possible, its work is divided into five areas (Improvement 
Capability; Person and Family-Centered Care; Patient Safety; Quality, 
Cost, and Value; Triple Aim for Populations) 

Studer Group $45M (2010) Works with over 850 healthcare organizations in the U.S. and beyond, 
teaching them how to achieve, sustain, and accelerate exceptional 
clinical, operational, and financial outcomes 

Planetree $7.6M (2012) Operates under the premise that care should be organized first and 
foremost around the needs of patients. Partners with providers across 
the continuum of care to transform organizational cultures.  

Peer Organizations Benchmarking (1 of 2)  

© 2014 by Root Cause 

Organization Annual 
Revenue 

Description from Website 

Patient & Family 
Centered Care 
Innovation Center  

N/A Established in 2006, the PFCC Innovation Center of UPMC is one of the 
first Patient and Family Centered Care (PFCC) applied research centers 
that focuses on co-designing ideal care experiences with patients and 
their families 

Press Ganey N/A Mission is to support health care providers in understanding and 
improving the entire patient experience. Strategic business partner to 
more than 10,000 health care organizations across the country and 
across the continuum of care. 

Institute for 
Patient- and 
Family-Centered 
Care (IPFCC) 

$2.3M (2012) The Institute for Patient- and Family-Centered Care serves as an 
information resource center for patient and family leaders, clinicians, 
administrators, educators, researchers, and facility designers who are 
interested in advancing the practice of patient- and family-centered 
care.  

Health and 
Disability 
Advocates (HDA) 

$2.1M (2012) Each year, HDA provides technical assistance to hundreds of 
individuals, community-based organizations, health care professionals, 
and state and federal agencies throughout the country. In addition, 
HDA regularly convenes meetings of federal and state agencies, 
advocates, consumer groups, and community-based providers to 
develop cogent public policy around disability and health. 

Peer Organizations Benchmarking (2 of 2)  

© 2014 by Root Cause 

Peer Organizations by Services Offered 
Organization  

For-
Profit/Nonprofit 

Technical 
Assistance/ 
Capacity-Building 

Events & 
Webinars  

Publications  
Research & 
Evaluation 

American Institutes for 
Research  

Nonprofit         

Institute for Healthcare 
Improvement  

Nonprofit         

Studer Group  For-Profit         

University of Pittsburgh 
Medical Center - Patient 
& Family Centered Care 
Innovation Center  

Nonprofit           

Planetree  
Nonprofit 
          

Press Ganey  For-Profit         

IPFCC Nonprofit         

HDA Nonprofit       
© 2014 by Root Cause 

Core and Secondary Markets:  
Original Hypothesis  
► Core Market:  

• Health plans that serve Medicaid and Medicare enrollees 
 
 
 
 
 

•   

► Secondary Market:  
• Community/non-profit health providers 
• Labor union Taft-Hartley plans 
• Dual demonstration project health plans 
• Accountable care organizations (ACOs) 
• Coordinated care organizations  

► Outside the Market: 
• Solely government funded health plans  

Health Plans   # of Plans # of Enrollees 

Medicaid Health Plans 337 29,120,482 

Medicare Health Plans  403 54,000,000 

Totals  740 83,120,482 

© 2014 by Root Cause 

Core and Secondary Markets: 
Current Hypothesis  
► Core Market:  

• Community-based health plans 
• Community health centers 

• 9,000 sites serving >22 million patients 
• ACAP member plans 

• 58 local, not-for-profit, community-affiliated Safety Net Health Plans 
• Accountable care organizations (ACOs) 

• Over 400 ACOs nationwide covering 25-31 million Americans 
• PACE organizations 

• 104 programs in 31 states 

► Secondary Market:  
• Community-based hospitals  
• Dual Demonstration Projects 
• Private, commercial health plans that serve Medicare/Medicaid 

► Outside the Market: 
• Solely government funded health plans  

Organization Type Population Served  

Community-based health plans 
including ACAP member plans 

ACAP: 58 local, not-for-profit, community-affiliated 
Safety Net Health Plans 

Community health centers  9,000 sites serving >22 million patients 

Accountable care organizations (ACOs) Over 400 nationwide covering 25-31 million 
Americans 

PACE organizations 104 programs in 31 states 

© 2014 by Root Cause 

CCCE Potential Products and Services: 
Current Hypothesis  

 
Strategic planning on consumer and community engagement 

Assistance brokering collaboration with community-based 
organizations 

Skill training and leadership development for consumers 

Development of user-friendly consumer engagement materials and 
tools  

Strategies for evaluating consumer feedback and engagement 
mechanisms  

Document and disseminate best practices and models of care 

67



4 

© 2014 by Root Cause 

External Review Findings To Date 

 

The following slides examine each hypothesis about the market and 
our conclusions 

The service offerings CC has put on 
the table for consideration to date do 

not match up to customers’ pain 
points. 

Customers are unlikely to pay to 
address something that is not a pain 

point. 

© 2014 by Root Cause 

Hypothesis 1: Compliance  

Hypothesis  
Potential customers will seek external assistance on 
complying with recent ACA-related guidelines on consumer 
engagement.  

Evidence  

Of all the new ACA requirements for non-profit hospitals, only one requirement (community assessment) 
comes with an accompanying penalty. ˡ 

“If CC is coming in and saying here is a test of 500 questions. 400 of them relate to big systems issues and 
we are going to come in as a separate question [on consumer engagement] and help you answer 5 of 
those – that is a hard place to position yourself.” ² 

“Some want to do the minimum – there is not much incentive – we don’t know the teeth behind the 
evaluative aspect…I know what [health plans] priorities are, and consumer engagement isn’t one of them.  
Need to be clear that there is a regulatory stick.” ³ 

Reality  

Compliance is not high on the list of concerns for target 
customers. Consumer engagement guidelines are not 
specific or stringent enough to make the topic a priority for 
target customers.  

© 2014 by Root Cause 

Hypothesis 2: Cost Savings 
 

 Hypothesis  

Potential customers who are interested in taking 
advantage of the cost savings associated with 
improved consumer engagement will seek external 
assistance.  

Evidence  

“Patient engagement still remains a ‘holy grail’ and I’m not sure that anyone has bragging rights about 
how well they are doing it… So if CC comes in saying they can do this, they might end up just being 
another vendor trying to distinguish themselves.” ˡ 

“CC has done well with…making sure vulnerable populations aren’t being left out [but]…financing and 
financial incentives in the system are not in line with consumers.” ²  

Reality  

The cost-savings from consumer engagement are 
neither well-known nor prioritized by potential 
customers, and take a back seat to other cost-saving 
sources related to administration and technology.  

© 2014 by Root Cause 

Hypothesis 3: Customer Service 

Hypothesis  
Potential customers will seek to improve the quality 
of their consumer engagement as an value-add for 
consumers that sets their services apart.  

Evidence  

“I don’t think [consumer engagement] is a pain point for them.  No one has made it such.  There is no pain to 
take away unless/until hospitals realize that they could take away a lot of pain.  I don’t think they are thinking 
about it.” ˡ 

“There’s a lot of interest in consumer engagement among health system players, but it’s currently more 
theoretical than practical… Health plans are most concerned with marketing issues and their competitive 
advantage over other health plans… [consumer engagement] doesn’t seem to be their main marketing ploy.”² 

Reality  
Currently this is not a top concern of customers and 
there is not yet a robust market advantage for 
customers with strong consumer engagement 

© 2014 by Root Cause 

Hypothesis 4: Mission Alignment 

Hypothesis  

Mission-driven customers will seek assistance with 
developing high quality consumer engagement 
practices, because consumer engagement is core to 
their mission. 

Evidence  

“I think [health plans and providers are] handling a lot of it internally, people who are working internally have 
feelers out on what state of the art is nationally. Decisions get made on the marketing- business case approach.” ˡ  

“Drawing on my own experience and community connections, [mission-driven community plans] are likely to 
have that going on already… I suspect people won’t pay.  The reason is that plans are paid through Medicaid 
programs, so there is a lot of investment in systems. They can put it in administrative, but I am skeptical.  [They 
are] more likely to hire someone [internally].” ²  

Reality  
Mission-based plans and providers are likely to 
improve customer engagement quality in-house 
rather than through external consulting assistance.  

© 2014 by Root Cause 

PATH FORWARD  

68



5 

© 2014 by Root Cause 

Hypothesis Evolution  

Customers won’t pay CCCE to help them work better 
with consumers, however… 

Customers may pay CCCE to help consumers 
work better with customers. 

Evidence  

“There will always be a series of people who don’t understand the economic impact of their care… There 
is a business model to carve out a better mousetrap (i.e. technology that appears on phones with 
multilingual abilities). Someone needs to tell [health system players] that they can administer these 
benefits in a better way at no large cost.” ˡ  

“A lot of education needs to happen with people who have never been connected with their state 
insurance program before. We quite frankly have not been ready for this [influx of new consumers]. We’re 
trying to go there. There is some activity that the state and CCOs will take on member engagement 
related to health Insurance 101, state insurance 101…Another thing we’re focusing on is health literacy- 
that’s come to the forefront as a need.” ²   

© 2014 by Root Cause 

Path Forward  
Current Potential Market  

Community-based health plans 
including ACAP member plans 

Community health centers  

Accountable care organizations 
(ACOs) 

PACE organizations 

New Potential Market  

Consumer advocacy groups 

Employers  

Labor unions  

Health plans  

Root Cause 
Market 

Research 

Deepen current 
research 

Explore new 
services and 

market 

© 2014 by Root Cause 

NEXT STEPS 

© 2014 by Root Cause 

Center for Consumer and Community 
Engagement Business Planning Process 

MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT 

PHASE 1: INTERNAL REVIEW 
• Community Catalyst Overview 
• Internal Stakeholder Review  

PHASE 2: EXTERNAL REVIEW 
• Interview key informants and potential 

customers 
• Research financial options  

PHASE 3: FRAME PLAN 
• Prepare multiple plan scenarios including 

program models and budget frameworks  

PHASE 4: DRAFT PLAN  
• Present summary of plan  
• Present funder prospectus and roadshow  

PHASE 5: FINALIZE PLAN AND DELIVERABLES 
• Review/finalize plan 
• Update all stakeholders 
• Ongoing implementation coaching  

         Working Group 
 Meeting 

Present Plan to Board 

Jun 2 

Aug 21 

Sep 29  

69



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 
 
TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
FROM: ROSEMARIE BOARDMAN 
 DONNA PINA ROBINSON 
 
DATE: SEPTEMBER 12, 2014 
 
RE: FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR THE BOARD MEETING 
 

 
 
Attached are financial documents for your review. I am sorry we are not able to present 
these documents to you personally at the September Board meeting; both of us will be 
overseeing the move to One Federal.  
 
FY 14 Financial Statements through July 2014: 
 
Attached are the financial statements for Community Catalyst the period January - July 2014. 
The statements are for the organization as a whole.  We are still projecting a year end 
surplus of $100,000.  
 
FY 13 990 Tax Return: 
 
Also attached is the 990 Tax Return for 2013. This form was reviewed by the Finance 
Committee at its meeting on August 28th. 
 
We look forward to seeing you in December in our new offices. Please don’t hesitate to 
contact us if you have any questions in the meantime. 
 
 
 

70



Community Catalyst
Statement of Financial Position
July 31, 2014

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash - Operating 3,101,386$           
Cash - Money Market 5,350,061

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,451,447

Other Current Assets
Accounts Receivable 356,858
Pledge Receivable 2,592,277
Other Receivables 1,129
Prepaid Expense 229,889

Total Other Current Assets 3,180,153

Other Assets
Security Deposits 3,446
Deferred Rent 112,275
Pledge Receivable L/T 2,052,374

Total Other Assets 2,168,095

Property and Equipment
Furniture & Fixtures 25,763
Office Equipment 89,549
Leasehold Improvements 572,098
Less: Accum Depr & Amort (115,311)

Total Property and Equipment 572,099

Total Assets 14,371,794$         

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 404,080$              
Accrued Expense 205,918

Total Current Liabilities 609,998

Long-Term Liabilities
LT Portion of Lease Payable 95,522

Total Long-Term Liabilities 95,522

Total Liabilities 705,520$              

Net Assets
Unrestricted Net Assets 1,858,502$            
Temporarily Restricted Assets 11,766,465
YTD Change in Net Assets 41,307

 
Total Net Assets 13,666,274

Total Liabilities & Net Assets 14,371,794$         

71



Community Catalyst
Net Statemetn of Activities
for the Seven Months Ending July 31, 2014

Current
Month

Year to
Date

Annual
Budget

Balance
Remaining

% to
Complete

Revenues
Unrestricted Grants 0 0 0 0 0.00
Grants Released Prior Year 665,107 5,767,800 7,361,862 1,594,062 (21.65)
Grants Released Current Year 324,613 2,052,597 4,484,530 2,431,933 (54.23)
Contracts 48,567 490,107 730,443 240,336 (32.90)
Donations 8,833 114,688 223,000 108,312 (48.57)
Fees 8,604 64,874 112,723 47,849 (42.45)
Subtenant Rent & Fees 29,964 208,883 343,235 134,352 (39.14)
Investment Income 564 2,645 4,300 1,655 (38.49)

Total Revenues 1,086,252 8,701,594 13,260,093 4,558,499 (34.38)

Expenses
Personnel
Salaries & Wages 391,136 2,523,814 4,390,181 1,866,367 42.51
Payroll Taxes 30,307 201,543 354,667 153,124 43.17
Benefits 52,177 347,251 695,525 348,274 50.07

Total Personnel 473,620 3,072,608 5,440,373 2,367,765 43.52

Contract/Consulting
Program Consulting 99,125 608,323 1,424,444 816,121 57.29
Accounting/Legal/Tech 18,628 116,716 142,720 26,004 18.22
Temporary Services 7,114 43,146 54,522 11,376 20.86
Contracted Staffing 3,095 16,515 0 (16,515) 0.00
Subgrants 110,900 3,558,239 3,683,917 125,678 3.41

Total Contract/Consulting 238,863 4,342,939 5,305,603 962,664 18.14
Office & Program Expenses
Meetings & Events 28,371 195,811 461,518 265,707 57.57
Travel 53,664 319,435 539,263 219,828 40.76
Telecommunications 5,106 41,082 106,936 65,854 61.58
Occupancy 70,178 488,164 811,690 323,526 39.86
Printing & Mailing 2,962 23,297 39,428 16,131 40.91
Supplies & Misc 3,121 21,222 44,672 23,450 52.49
Staff Development 1,587 26,573 51,179 24,606 48.08
Advertising 485 1,846 800 (1,046) (130.75)
Dues & Subscriptions 3,270 20,536 30,700 10,164 33.11
Fees 1,380 12,220 20,550 8,330 40.54
Insurance/Other 1,785 14,544 14,896 352 2.36
Equipment Related 1,682 39,460 37,800 (1,660) (4.39)
Depreciation 0 6,570 16,570 10,000 60.35
Admin Fee 6,004 33,981 70,993 37,012 52.13
Net Allocations 0 0 0 0 0.00

Total Other Expenses 179,595 1,244,741 2,246,995 1,002,254 44.60

Total Expenses 892,078 8,660,288 12,992,971 4,332,683 33.35

Net Income 194,174 41,306 267,122 225,816 (84.54)

72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120




